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Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

Strategic Report

The directors present their strategic fepori on the Group for the period ended 31 January 2023.

Strategy
Nash Squared Holdings Limited cnd its subsidiaries, together "Nash Sduared", is the leading globol provider of fechnology and talent solutions.
We're equipped with a unique network, that realises the potential where people.and technology meet.

For over three décades we've been helping clients solve broad and complex problems, building and scaling their technology and digital
capability in every way, from connechng organisations with the very best globol talent to cpplylng technology expertise to solve complex
problems.

Nash Squcred aims to accelerate growth through |nvestments in people, systems, solutions cnd potentially further acquisitions.

. During the year the Alumni business was divested Through a management buyouf (MBO) to accelerate the growth of both brands. The
divestment of Alumni will support Nash Squared's rapid growth strategy by providing a greater focus to its technology and talent solution
brands - which help and support clients in developing their digital teams and capability. See note 32 for details.

In July 2022 Nash Squared acquired Het Fiexhuis, a major Managed Service Provider {MSP) of talent and recruitment services based in the
Netherlands. Het Flexhuis has established a strong reputation in-the MSP market through its extensive expertise, well proven methodologies and
custom designed tools and technology. It is Nash Squared's vision to help clients access talent and technology in every way possible, and
offering a high quality MSP solution is an |mpoﬁont next step for the Group. Het Flexhuis has subsequently been rebranded as simply Flexhuis.
See note 31 for details.

In January 2023 Nash Squared acquired Knoldus as part of its strategic expansion in North America. Knoldus is a technology advisory and
solutions company with over 300 employees based in Canada, the US, Singapore and two development centres in India. It has a strong
reputation across Fortune 500 clients for delivering leading-edge digital solunons around data, cloud and machine Iecrnlng as well as high-
performcnce real-time data systems See note 31 for details.

The acquisition significantly strengthens NcshTech‘s footprint in the world's largest technology market and adds important expertise in the fast-
growing areas of cloud and data. It extends NashTech's global development centre capability, which includes hubs in Vietham and India.

Review of the business

The progress of Nash Squared Holdings Ltd is summarised below:

Results and performance’ .

Nash Squored reported an operoting profit of £15.3m after exceptional costs (2022: £17.4m). Operating profit excluding excephonol costs was
£22.3m {2022; £18. 7m) Profit before tax for the period mcludlng all excephoncl items was £11.9m (2022: £15.7m}. The dlrectors are satisfied with
the results.

Key performance indicators {KPIs) . :

The directors consider the key performance indicators are those that communicate the financial performance and strength of the business.

2023 2022
. - £.000 ) £000

Revenue (excluding discontinued operations) . 748416 659,062

" Gross profit g C ' ' 120,677 " 105,230
Gross margin . ’ ‘ S 18.12% 15.97%
Operating profit {excluding exceptionals, amortisation, foreign exchange and interest) : . 31,924 © . 27,330
Operating profit ‘ . : ‘ 15,285 -17,423
EBITDA excluding excephoncls * ’ ) 34433 - 29,408
EBITDA percentage of gross profit . 28.53% . 27.95%

Profit before tax ' ' . 11,919 15,679

* EBITDA excluding exceptionals is calculated by adding back depreciation on property,'plcni -and equipment of £2.0m and amortisation of
£6.7m and exceptionol costs of £7.1m and finance costs of £3.3m to operating profit of £15.3m.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited . ' ) . ' ' . " Annual Report & Accounts
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Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

Strategic Report  confinued

Stakeholder engcgeinent and our $172 statement

Introduction

Throughout the strategic and directors report, we provide examples of how we:

Take into account the likely consequences of long-term décisions

*Build relationships with stakeholders

*Engage with employees and promote diversity )
*Understand the importance of finding ways of reducing our environmental |mpoct and be a con5|dercfe member of local communmes

« Atiribute importance to behavina as a responsible business.

The board acknowledges Section 172 (1) of the UK Companies Act 2006, and its duty to promote the success of the Company.

A director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company
for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so has regard (cmorigsT other matters) to:

a) the likely consequences of ohy decision in the long term

b) the interests of the company's employees : )

c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others \

d} the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment

e} the desirability of the company maintaining a reputatiori for high standards of business conduct

f) the need to act faily between members of the company

The Nash Squared board takes these obligations seriously and the directors are aware of their ongoing duties to act for the benefit of its
customers, investors and staff. The following section provides examples of how the company directors meet their duties to all stakeholders.

Employee engagement ‘

During 2020, the board appointed its flrst Chief People Officer. Since joining they have introduced a Global People Strategy to attract and
retain the best talent to enable Nash Squared to build a fit for future organisation that achieves sustainable and profitable growth. This
strategy is supported by a connected people team to deliver key strategic actions. Key initiatives include a Globdl Diversity & Inclusion
Council along with three employee networks and a wellbeing hub for colleagues, candidates and clients. Alongside this there has been
investment in talent and development through our Talent Framework, talent development programmes, global mentoring programme and
the implementation of a new learning management system (LMS). We have invested further in Learning & Development with new L&D roles
and the development of career pathways which support our colleogues to have a rewarding career with' us.

The launch of a Global engagement platform has given our colleagues a voice by fostering a culture of dpen feedback and actions. The
Global engagement survey results are presented at senior leadership and board level to discuss findings, review recommendations and agree
action plans. To support this Leaders across the business have put in place engagement ambassadors who help us to act upon the feedback
from our colleagues. Our 'Ask Bev' tool, a platform that gives colleagues from across the globe the oppbrtunity to directly raise concerns or ask
questions on the wider business strategy with Bev White our CEO, has been widely used. In conjunchon with this, global strategy updates for all
colleagues are held each quarter along with a Global People Update Newsletter. These updates give an opportunity to relay decisions made
based on colleague feedback, communicate.strategy and its impact on colleagues in addition to sharing updates on wider economic
factors affecting Nash Squared.

Equcl opportunlﬂes

Nash Squared has a zero tolerance cpprocch to discrimination suppon‘ed by an equal opportunities policy that aims to treat individuals fairly
and not to discriminate on the basis of sex, race, ethnic origin, disability or any other basis. Nash Squared is focused on ensuring that we
operate in an environment where diversity, equality and inclusion is an integral part of our culture, where our leaders, moncgers and-
colleagues role model |nc|uswe behaviours which permeote ‘through our business intemally and extemclly

Nash Squared's policies and procedures are designed to provide for full and foir consideration and selection of disabled applicants, to ensure
that they are properly frained to perform safely and effectively and to provide career opportunities that allow them to fulfil their potential.
Where an employee becomes disabled in the course of their employment, Nash Squared will actively seek to retain them wherever possible
by making adjustments to their work content and environment or by retraining them to undertake new roles.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited . ' - Annual Report & Accounts 2023 -
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Strategic Report  continued

- Business relationships and.supply chain

The board is aware of the necessity of maintaining a clean supply chain, free of exploited labour. Nash Squared adheres to a supplier
code of conduct that integrate with its key policies, including its Modermn Slavery, Human Trafficking {MSHT) and carbon reduchon
sfrcfegy

- The directors encourage all representatives of Nash Squared to build and maintain strong business relationships with both customers and
suppliers. This continued engagement with customers and suppliers contributes to the current and continued success of Nash Squared.

Community and environment '

The board is conscious that the business should have a 16w impact on the environment in which it operates, particularly in terms of energy . °

consumption and business travel. As an organisation, we take climate change seriously. Our environmental strategy aims to reduce our

carbon footprint and follows industry best practice on environmental, social and governance (‘ESG') principles. Nash Squared’s .

operations, being services, are inherently less damaging to the environment than other business sectors. However, the board recognises

" that the business must minimise its impact on the environment and utilises recommendchons from the Corbon Trust to reduce the
orgdnlsdhon s carbon footprint. .

At Nash Squcred we are focused on delivering a positive social impact through our actions to support our employees, the work we do

with clients every day and through our actions with local communities. As a global employer we believe in supporting communities within

" the regions we operate and we do this through initiatives which help to deliver sustainable employment, mentoring, volunteering and

fundraising. We actively encourcge our colleagues to-identify opportunities to suppod local charities and not-for- profts via volunteering

- or fundraising.

Emisslons and energy usage

This year we have calculated our environmental |mpcct across scope 1, 2 and 3 emission sources for the UK only, presenting emissions on-
a location basis. Our emissions are 111,350 kgCo2e (2022: 121,400 kgCo2e), which is an intensity ratio of 229 kgCo2e per employee (2022:
283 kgCo2e per employee). We have calculated the emission intensity ratios on'a per employee basis. The methodology used to
calculate the greenhouse gas emissions uses conversion factors published by the Depdrfrhenf for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for
2023. We have reported on all the measured emissions sources requured under The Companies (Directors' Repoﬁ) and Limited Liability
PdrTnershnps {Energy and Carbon Report] Regulations 2018, except where stated.

The directors are pleased with Nash Squared'’s progress in reducin_g carbon emissions, and remain committed to mdking a positive
environmental contribution while recognising their responsibility to ensure a bright future for the next generation. /

Emissions and energy usage A . Emissions ‘source ’ 2023 2022
Scope 1 (kgCO.e) : : Combustion 49,820 49,696
Scope 2 (kgCO,e) : - Electricity 44,020 56,448
‘Scope 3 (kgCOze) Indirect energy ’ 17,510 15,236
Total kgCOe . : - ) - 111,350 121,400
Total energy usage (kWh) L _ E ' . ' 554,474 426,414
kgCO,e per employee - . 229. " 283

Nash Squared Holdings Limited . . ’ Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Strategic Report  continued

Emisslons and carbon acfion

Nash Squared finalised its property rchoncllsanon project i in the last period. Where leases have expired we have invested in smaller office.
spaces that can be shared by our brands and support our hybnd working model. Offices that can benefit from renewable energy sources
have been pricritised as part of the rationalisation. The full year benefit of the project has caused the current reporting period reduction in
Scope 2 emissions detailed in the emissions and energy usage table.

During the year we Iouncﬁed an electric car scheme for UK eollecgues, adding to the offerings already available to colleagues in other
regions. This transition away from petrol and diesel to electric represents an impoﬁonf step in the achievement of our net zero strategy while
bols1ermg benefit packagesfor our collecgues The impact of this is expected to be'seen in the Scope 1 emissions for the next repomng
penod .

Nash Squored began preparations for its first public disclosure with the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) in 2023.The CBP is the gold standard in
for corporate environmental repomng Publlcly reporhng with the CDP will give greater transparency and engagement with our s'rokeholders

Carbon reduction targets

There have been carbon reduction targets.in place since the launch of our net zero strategy in 2022. We have made steody progress against
. these targets during the reporting period, culminating in year on year reductions of our reported emissions and energy usage data under the

streamlined energy and carbon reporhng

The progress of specific carbon reduction 'rorge1s is summarised further below:

Target: Hybrid working to'be a standard from 2022 with a focus on electric vehicles where fleet decisions are made. .
FY23 actions and progress: :

<All regions globally now operate a hybnd working model where local laws allow ‘
fAn ail-eleciric company car scheme was launched in the UK during the reporting period

Target: A 50% reduction in baseline global air fravel emissions by 2025. The baseline year is the 12 months ended 31st January 2020.

FY23 actions and progress:
*Implementation of a global travel management system increasing data quoll‘ry and the ability to purchase carbon offsets at the pomt of
booking travel .

Target: All European offices to be 100% renewable energy by 2025. .

FY23 actions and progress: ) . v
*Relocation to a new London headquarters with a 65% lower Scope 2 emission output. : .
*Continued improvement our office selection criteria, prioritising green properties.

+Continued prioritisation of renewable energy suppliers at contract renewal points.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited ' . ) : . Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Strategic Report  continued

Principal risks and uncertainties _ .
There are certain risks and uncertainties inherent in the Group that may affect future performance, these are described below:

legal and regulatory

Nosh'Squored works in a numbef of geographic jurisdictions on a daily basis under a variety of laws and regulations. Nash Squared mitigates
this risk through comprehensive compliance policies and procedures including engoging with local advisers and regulators where necessary.

Financial

All potential areas of financial risk are regularly menitored and reviewed by the directors. Where necessary preventative and/or comrective.
measures are taken toreduce such risk, Nash Squared operates in a number of foreign markets, the existence of which exposes the company
to @ number of financial risks. These risks including credit risk are addressed in note 4 of the financial statements.

Operational s A ’ -

Nash Squared is reliont on its ability to fulfil client demand while recruiting, training and developing high quality talent to maintain ond expand
its growth strategy. The directors actively engage in providing a structure of sustainable career development for employees.

Nash Squared continues to diversify its operations and uhllses its posmonlng inkey seciors across a broad geogrcphlc footprint to protect
against lower candidate availability in more mcfure markets, .

Political L
The increased political uncertainty from the Ukraine conflict continues to be monitored and reviewed by directors. Nash Squared does not’ '

have operations in Ukraine or Russia so there is no direct impact on our trading at this time. In addition to the impact of inflation, tax rises are
also being monitored. Client contracts allow any sfgte related pay increases to be charged on.

. Climate change
Climate change will impact Nash Squared over a sngnmccnﬂy longer time scale than the risks norally considered by the group risk
committee. Consequently climate change remains an emerging risk with no material impact on current strategy. liquidity or performonce
Desplte this, the group risk committee take the impact of climate change seriously and continue to monitor its impact. .

_ Risk management

Nash Squared adheres to a Group risk pollcy ond framework that was developed based cround the principles of 1ISO31000. Risk registers are
submitted from across the organisation on a quarterly basis. The audit and risk committee meets twice a yeor at which Group risks are
presented for consideration. Additionally, the board is made aware of imminent and high risks, and the framework integrates with a business
continuity plan that can be activated as necessary. ’

Subsequenf events

Nash Squared has completed its subsequent events evolucﬂon for the period subsequent to the balance sheet dofe of 31 January 2023,
through to the date of signing these financial statements and concluded that there are no odjusnng or non-adjusting subsequent events
requiring disclosure. . ]

-~ Future outlook .
Nash Squared's strategy leaves it well placed to continue mokung progress, delivering further value to investors and stakeholders through
continued focus on the technology market, our broad portfolio of services and the geographic diversity of the Group.

(/& A ¥
Christopher Tilley Date: 23-May-23
Director

Nash Squared Holdings Limited . ’ Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Directors’ report
The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023.
© On 4 May 2022, the company changed its name from Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited to Nash Squared Holdings Limited.

The Group has chosen to prepare their financial sfo'rer’r'!enfs:in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

’

Directors

The directors holding office at the date of this report:

.

Bev 'Wh'ife Gary Browning Adrian Gunn Joanna Macleod
Christopher Tiley = -~ Michael Haxby Diederik Vos ' ) s

Michael Branigan David Mormison Streisan Bevan

Subsidiaries outside the United Kingdom

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023, the Group had entities established for corporation tox purposes in a number of countries. A
full list of subsidiaries and locations are set out on pages 56 to 59. )

Future developments _ )
Details of future developments can be found in the strategic report and form part of this report by cross-reference.

1

Flnanciol risk management objectives and pollc1es
Nash Squored s activities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. Detcnls of Nash Squared's
objectives and policies in response to these risks can be found within note 4 to the financial statements.

o
Going concern

The directors have considered the cument and forecos’r levels of frading, taking into account the cash and invoice dlscounhng facilities
expected to be available to-Nash Squared, and have concluded that the going concern basis of preparation remains appropriate.

In coming to their conclusion, the directors have considered trading and cash flow performance of the last 12 months and for ot least 12
“months from the date of signing.the financial statements. Nash Squared has demonstrated its resilience and ability to trade profitably through
the pandemic with considered management actions to reduce costs and maintain strong working capital management. The extremely strong
" current year trading results support the directors firm belief that Nash Squared is well beyond the point of peak disruption. Despite this the .
directors have taken a prudent approach, and stress test scenarios have been modelled representing the potential impact of a second
pandemic downturn. In this scenario, we would still maintain adequate cash headroom and remain within the limits of our banking covenants.

‘- Nq‘;h;Squ’ured Holdings Limited, ' . : Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Directors' report  continued

Directors' and third party |ndemnify provisions

Nash Squared has maintained throughout the period directors' and officers' liability insurance for the benem of the Group, the directors and its
officers. The Group has entered into qualifying third party indemnity arangements for the benefit of all its directors in a form and scope which
complies with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. These amrangements were in force fhroughout the period and remoln in force at
the date of these flncnc:ol statements.

Dividends .
During the period dividends were declared and paid to the value of £0.89m {2022: £1.2m). No dividends have been proposed post period
end. . . ’

Share capital -
During the period there were no chcnges to the issued share capital of the Group

Political and charitable contributions R
The Group made no political or charitable contributions or donations during the period.

Auditor and disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
e so far as the director is aware, there is no relevont audit mformchon {as defined by section 418 of the Companies Act 2006} of which the
Group's auditor is unaware; and
e the director has taken all the steps that he/she’ ought to have taken as a director in order to make h|rnse|f/herse|f aware of any relevant
cludlt |nformchon cnd to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

h|s confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provmons of 541.8 of the Companies Act 2006.
The auditor, Deloitte LLP, will be proposed for reoppointmenf in cécordcnr_:e with sec’rion 485 of the Componies Act 5006.'
Appro,v'ed and signed on behalf of the board:

A ten
- = \

Christopher Tilley ‘ Date: 23-May-23
Director

" Nash Squared Holdings Limited Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Statement of Directors'’ ResponSib.iliﬁ‘es in Respect
of the Annual Report

.For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

Directors' Responsibilities Sfotemehi

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the fincnciol statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under that law the directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom adopted intemational
" accounting standards. The financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB. The

directors have chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework".

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a frue cnd fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; I

- make ju'dgémen'rs and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

— state whether FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Fromework has been followed, subject to any mc’rencl departures dlsclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

~ prepare the flncncujl statements on the going concern basis unless it is mcppropnofe to-presume that the Company will conhnue

in busmess

In prepcring the Group financial statements, international Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

- properly select and apply accounting policies; : ’

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable; comparable and understandable
information; '

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particulor transactions, other events and condifions on the éntity‘s financial position and financial performance

performance; andmake an assessment of the Group's ability to.continue as a going concern. -

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions
- and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking --
- reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud cnd other |rregulcn'r|es

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporcte and fmcncnol information included on the Company's

. website. Legislation in the Unl'red Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other |ur|sd|c1|ons
Responslbllity statement .

- We confirm that to the best of our knowledge: -

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant finqnciol reporting framework, give a true and fair view of the assets,.
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;
- the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face;

and . .
- the annual report and financial statements, taken.as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the company's position and performance, business model and strateay.

This responsibility statement was opprO\}ed by the board of directors on [date] ond is signed on its behalf by:

Christopher Tilley CAA \M Date: 23-May-23

Director
‘Nash Squared Holdings Limited : . Annual Report & Accobnts 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Nash Squared Holdings Limited - L

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

e the financial statements of Nash Squared Holdings Limited {the ‘parent company') and its subsidiaries {the ‘group’) give a true and fair
view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 January 2023 and of the group’s profit for the year then
ended;

e the Group financial statements hove been’'properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Accounting Sfondords in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Flncnc:lal Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as |ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ({IASB)

¢ the parent company financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial. Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial sigtemems which comprise:

the consolidated stotement of profit and loss;

the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income;

the consolidcted ond parent company statement of financial position;
the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement

e o 0 o o o

.the related consolidated notes 1 to 32; and
e the related parent company notes | to 7.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Componies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ({ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial stotemenis section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requiremenfs that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the ‘FRC's’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respon5|blllhes in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and oppropriate to
prowde a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern -

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going.concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not |denf|f|ed any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's ability o continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. )
Our responsibiiities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stoted in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to @ material misstatement in
the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a motenol misstatement of this other
information, we are reqmred to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited : " Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Nash Squared Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

Report on the audit of the financial statements  confinued.

Responsiblilities of directors

- .
As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements

- and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessdry to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's ability to continue as o
going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the ‘going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or. have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or enor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC s websute ot

www . frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, Including fraud

Iregularities, including froud are instances of non- compllcnce with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responSIbllmes,
outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of imegularities, including froud. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting imeqularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group's documentation of their policies and
procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of iregularities and the directors about their own identification and assessment of the risks of iregularities, mcludlng ’
those that are specific to the group's business sector.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, and identified the key laws and regulations
* that:
¢ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These included; the UK
Companies Act, relevant tax legislation; and
do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamentol to the group's ability to operate
or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team. These included significant component audit teams and relevant internal specialists such
os tax, valuations, and IT regarding the opportunities and incentives fhof may exist within the orgomsohon for froud and how and where fraud
might occurin the financial statements.

‘As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our specific procedures
performed to address them are described below:

o therisk that any impairment review in relation to goodwill balances has not been carmied out appropriately: fo address this risk, we tested
the design and implementation of controls in place to mitigate the risk of material misstatement, independent valuations experts have
analysed inputs to the goodwill model and discount rates, management assumptions and forecasts have been critically evaluated and
challenged to assess reasonableness, mathematical accuracy of management's mode! has been tested and sensitivity analysis hos been

. performed including recalculation of headrooms

o therisk that revenue amounts have been recorded inaccurately or recognised in the wrong period (resulhng in a misstatement to the
accrued revenue balance): we tested the design and implementation of controls in place to mitigate the risk of material misstatement
and the reconciliation between revenue accrued for, and fimesheets subsequently submmed which relate to the cument reporting period
was obtained and vouched on a sample basis . .

In common with all audits under 1SAs {UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override.
In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in moking accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bios; and evaluated the
business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.
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Report on the avdit of the financial siotemenf_s continued

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified mcluded the foIIowmg

o reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and
regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial stotements:

. performmg analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relotfonshrps fhat may indicate risks of mctenal mtssfatemenf due
to fraud;

© enquiring of moncgement and external legal counsel concerning octuol and potential litigation and claims, and ms'rcmces of non-
compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with gbvemonce.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for Wthh the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and . : :
o the strateégic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in'the course of the

audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the sfrofeglc report or the directors' report.

Matters on which we are requlred to report by exception )
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our cudn have not been received
+ from branches not visited by us; or
o the parent company financial statements are notin agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or : o \
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of ourreport

This report is made solely to the company's members, as o body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

V Helen Wildman ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor '
London, United Kingdom
Date: 23-May-23
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Consolidated Siotemenf of Other Comprehensive Income

Consolldated Siatemeni of Proflt and Loss

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

2023 . 2022 *
: ) . Notes . £' 000 . £000
Revenue , ' : S ‘ 6 748,416 659,062
Cost of sales s ' ' (627,739) . (553,833) .
Gross profit ‘ ‘ 120,677 " 105,229
Other income . ' - ’ 340 ' 159
- Administrative expenses ' . ' (98,717) (86,673)
Operating profit before exceptional items ’ . : ) 22,300 18,715
Exceptional items ‘ : 10 . (2.015) ©(1,293)
. Operating profit . B . ) 8 15,285 17,422
Finance costs - 7 (3.326) © (1,714)
Exceptional finance costs ’ 10 . (40) : . (30)
Profit before tax . - ' : 11,919 - 15478
income tax charge ) ) . . . N (5.116) (2,641)
" Profit for the perlod from continuing operations . c 6,803 13,037
Discontinued operations . ) a
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations after tax ' : 32 (114) : 43
Profit for the period L , ' .. 6,689 13,100

* Comparative omoynts hgve been re-presented fo reflect the classification of the Alumni sub-group as a discontinued operation. See note 32 for further
information.

Consolldaied Siaiemeni of Oiher
- Comprehensive Income

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

2023 2022

. (€000 £' 000

Profit for the period - : . . ) C < 6,689 13,100

. Foreign cumrency translation differences ' ' : 2,827 . 1,084
Toial'comprehenslve profit for the period attributable to owners of the Company 9,516 14,184
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Consolldaied Siatemeni of chmcml Posmon

As at 31 Jonuory 2023

2023 2022
Notes £' 000 “£'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
Intangible assets . ) ' ' .- 15 153,555 122,801

- Property, plant and equipment ' ) . . " . 16 7,051 6,185
Right-of-use ‘assets R S ' i 17 9,894 9,900
Deferred tax asset o * 13 1,059 - Co-
Loans receivable from parent undertakings . . 24 3,085 995
Other long term receivables . . 28 7.524 1,924

_ 182,168 141,805
Current assets '
Trade and other receivables . o ] ‘ 18 197,707 164,046
Current income tax assets - : : ' . 13 1,100 . 750
- Cash and cash equivalents . 19 36,099 30,221 -
: 234,906 195017
Total assets 417,074 336,822
LIABILITIES . ’ . :
Current liabllities ) : .

" Trade and other payables’ . ' : » ‘ 20 (179,428) {157,096)
Current income tax liabilities - . . ‘ : : 13 (3,115) ' -
Deferred tax liabilities ) - 13 . - - {1.066)
Borowings ‘ ' _ ' : ‘ 29 {55.002) (40,177)
Short-term lease liabilities i ' 17 {6.972) (7.807)
Deferred consideration Co- . o ) ’ 30 (8.054)" {6.758)

o i (252,571) (212,904)
Non-current liabllities : S
Bomowirigs . o o © 29 {39.189) (15,135)
Long-term lease liabilities T S ‘ 17 (3.448) (2,472)
Loans payable to group undertakings . : : . c 24 " (1,312) (1.112)
Deferred consideration . ) 30 (2.827) -
Deferred tox liabilities - . ‘ - B o 13 {11,490) (7,584)

) ’ : (58,266) (26,303)

Total liabllities (310.837) . (239,207)
Net assets 106,237 97,615
EQUITY

Ordinary shares o - : 21 1 ]
Share premium o T 10,000 10,000
Fair value and other non-distributable reserves - : - .22 15,380 15,380
Other distributable reserves - ' : ' 22 67.969. 67,969
Cumulative franslation reserve . 22 604 - (2.223)
Retained earnings : ' - . : 23 12,283 6,488
Total equity 104,237 . 97,615 -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 13 - 51 were approved by the board and authorised for issue on its behalf by Christopher Tilley.

Director

Chnstopher Tllley% \/\/\/\JN\__ Date: 23-May-23

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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- Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

Share

falr value
and other
non-

Other ' Cumulative

. . Share distibutable distributuble franslation Retained Total
capital premium reserves. reserves ‘reserve earnings
_ £' 000 £'000 £' 000 £' 000 £'000 £' 000 £' 000
Balance at 31 Janvary 2021 . o 1 10,000 15,380 67,949 (3.306) (5.378) 84,666
Profit for the period S : - - - - _ - 13100 13,100
Cumrency translation adjustments ' - - - - 1.084 - 1,084
Total comprehensive income for the period ) - - - z 1,084 13,100 14,183 v
Dividends paid - - - - - (1235 {1,235)
Balance at 31-January 2022 ' 1 10,000 15,380 67,969 (2,222) 6,487 97,615
Profit for the period' : . - - - - - 6,689 6,689
Curmrency translation adjustments - . - - - - 2,827 - 2,827
Total comprehensive income for the period ) ’ - - - - 2,827 6,689 9.516
Dividends paid . . : - - - - - (894) ' (894)
10,000 15,380 67,969 604 - 12,282 106,237

‘Balance at 31 January 2023 . 1

Nash Squared ﬂc;ldlngs Limited

Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia.l Statements ‘

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

2023 2022
. ] . . Notes . : £' 000 © £°000
Profit before tax ' : : . 1,919 15,679
Adjustments for:, i ) . '
- depreciation . - 16 & 17 6.847 6,948
- amortisation ‘ 15 9,074 , 6.824
- profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment . _ 16 _ - . (161)
. -finance income ' ' B . (340) , (129)°
- finance costs N . . 7 3.326 . : 1.714
- exceptional finance costs ) . . 10 40 . 30
- LTIP non-cash movement ' I . 200 200
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital -~ : ) 31,066 31,105
Changes in working capital: ‘ : .
- (increose) in trade and other receivables 18 (26,405) - (2.016)
-increase in trAadAe and other payables 20 - 9.611 7,230
Operating loss on discontinued operations | - - 32 107 63
Cash flows from operating activities 14,379 29,381
Income tax paid ' ' ’ 13 (4,192) (4.026)
Net cash geﬁerafed from operating acfivities ’ 10,187 25,355
Cash flows from investing activities ) .
Net puréhoses of property, plant and equipment ' ) ' 16 {2.837) (2,660)
Interest received ) : . : n " 340 o129
Payment of deferred consideration : . . 30 (7.494) = . {6.736)
Acquisition of subsidiary . 31 (38.292) - - -
- Cash acquired in'ocquisiﬁon of subsidiary ' . " 31 _ 12,656 -
Cash proceeds from disposal of subsidiary ’ . - 32 3.500 ) ' -
Cash disposed with subsidiary . 32 {2,556) ) -
Net cash used in investing activities : (34,483) . '(9,267)
. Cash flows from financing activities . )
Lease repayments . ' s 17 © 1 (5.215) (5.001)
Loans given to group undertakings 4 24 . {2,090) . 150)
" Interest paid . ' 7 : {2.975) (1,435)
Exceptional finance costs ) . 10 N (40) (30)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings raised ‘ o 29 o 48,522 -
Repayment of long-term borrowings o 29 {18,443) {3.308)
Increase/(decrease) in short-term borrowings - . 29 8,801 . © 3,068
Equity dividends paid . : - : 4 (894) (1,235)
Net cash used in ﬂnahclng activities 27,666, (8,092)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents : ‘ v 3,170 7,996
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year . . . . . 30,221 21,684
Exchange movemen'ts on cash and cash equivalents - : T 2,708 . 541
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yéar . : 36,099 . 30221

* (/:omporotive amounts have been re-presented to refiect the classification of the Alumni sub-groub os o discontinued operation. See note 32 for further
information. ’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolldated chmcml Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 Jcmucry 2023

. -

1. Generalinformafion ) ‘ )
Nash Squared Holdings Ltd (‘the Company') and its subsidiaries (together ‘the Group') is a leading provider of specialist recruitment and
outsourcing solutions. The Group has offices in the United Kingdom, Europe, the United States and Asia Pacific. '

The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Klngdom and registered.in Englond and Wales. lts reglstered
addressis 3 Noble Street, London EC2V 7EE.

For the penod ended 31 January 2023 the following subsidiaries of the Company were.entitled to exemption from audit under 5479A of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies. As parent the Company has provided a guarantee undertaking under s479C.

NashTech Limited (Compdny Number 09834873)
Nash Squared Ltd . (Company Number 03320790)

1.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in occordcnce with United Klngdom adopted |nternct|ono| accounting standards and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements of the parent Company are prepared under Financial Reporting Standard (*FRS') 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

The Company has adopted the requirements of The Companies Act 2006.

2. Adoption of new and revised stundards : ) .
The Group has considered the following new standards, mterpretohons and amendments to publnshed standards that are effective for the
Group for the financial period beginning 1 February 2022 and concluded that they are elther not relevant to the Group or that they would
not have c significant effect on the Group's financial statemients other than disclosures: *

Standard Description : ‘ . Effective Date
IIF:SI:élgss 7. IFRS 9, IFRS Amendments regdrding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform ( 1 January 2021
IFRS 17 ) _|Insurance confracts - ) 1 Jonuary 2021
IFRS 16 Amendment fo extend the exemption from assessing whether a COVID- l9-relcted 1 April 2021

rent concession is a lease modification -

Nash Squared Holdings Limited . . ’ : ’ Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Fmancml Sfcﬂements -_Q

For The 12 month penod ended 31 January 2023

- 2. Adoption of new and revised siandards continued

The followmg new standards, interpretations and omendments to published standards and interpretations which are relevant to the Group
have been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 February 2022 and hove not been adopted early.

These standards, interpretations and amendments to published stondords and mferprefchons are not expected to have a material effect on
the Group's financial statements: ’

Standard - Description . - : : ) Effective Date

IFRS 4 A Amendmenfs regarding the expiry date of the deferal approach . ’ 1 January 2023
IAS 1 ) ) Amendments regarding the clcssnflcchon of Ilcbllmes ‘ A 1 January 2023
IAS 8 ' . |Amendments regarding the definition of accounting eshmcfes . - 1 January 2023

IAS12 Amendments regarding deferred tox on leases and decomm|55|onmg obhgohons 1 January 2023

Nash Squared Holdings Limited B i ‘ Annual Report & Accounts 2023
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Noies to the Consolldated Flnancml Statements

For fhe 12 month period ended 31 Jcmuory 2023

3. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these f|nonC|oI statements are set ouf below.

(a) Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reosonoble expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.
Accordingly the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements. Please see the going
concem statement on page 7 for more detail.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consohdcte the results of the Compony and all of its subsidiary unden‘okungs drawn up from 1 February 2022 to
31 January 2023 and are based on the consistent accounting policies disclosed herein.

Consolidation of o subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiory and ceases when the Company loses control of
the subsidiary. All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into Ilne with the

Group's accounting policies.
. A
(c) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured .
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the dcquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acqmsmon-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Atthe acquisition date, the identifioble assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date,

except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities reloTed fo employee beneft crrongements are recognlsed and measured in
accordance with IAS 12'and IAS 19 respectively;

-0 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arangements of the ocquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 af the
acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, ofter reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities ossumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a

. bargain purchase gain.
When the consideration fransfemed by the Group in a business combination includes a conhngen'r consideration arangement, ihe contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
comesponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the mecosurement period' (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about focts ond circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not-remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other conhngent consideration is remeasured to

. fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in foir value recognised in"profit or loss.
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests {including joint operations) in'the acquired entity are
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the
Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, fo reflect new information obtained about facts and

- circumstances that ex1s'fed as of the acquisition dcfe that, if known, would have cffected the amounts recognised as of that date.
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Notes to the Consolldated chmcml Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

3. Significant accounting policies: continued

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognlsed and mecsured as set out above. ) .

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewéd forimpairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which gobdwill has
been allocated are tested forimpairment annually, or more frequently when there is anindication that the unit may be impaired. If an .
impairment is required the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the canying amount of any goodwill aliocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amount of each dsset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent penod

On disposal of a ccsh-genercmng unit, the attributable cmount of goodW|II isincluded in the determmctlon of the profit or loss on disposal.

(e) Revenue recognition
The Group measures and recognises revenue in accordance with IFRS 15. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains
“control of the goods or services. The Group continuously monitors and performs a detailed review of confracts, to determine the - timing of the -
transfer of control in each of ifs service lines. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the supply
of services, net of value added tax, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue earned, but not |nv0|ced at the balance sheet date is accrued on the balance sheet as accrued income. Revenue |nv0|ced but
not earned-at the balance sheet date is recorded as a liability as deferred income. :

Principal versus agent considerations .
The Group derives a significant proportion of its revenue from the provision of temporary workers to clients. Whether the full invoiced amount is
" recognised gross (inclusive of the costs of the tempoarary workers), or net {exclusive of costs of the workers) depends on whether the Group acts
as principal or agent. IFRS 15 recognises revenue under a concept of ‘transfer of control'. Its core principle.is whether the good or service is
controlled by the entity prior to delivery to the client. For the purposes of determining whether an entity acts as an agent or principal, IFRS 15
provides indicators of where control may exist. Significantly, these indicators do not include credit risk as an indicator that an entlty isacting as
a principal. .

Temporary contractors
The Group derives its revenue in the contract services and interim businesses on a fime and materials basis. It is recognised as services are
rendered as validated by receipt of a client-approved timesheet or equivalent.

Where the Group has the primary responsibility to deliver and fulfil the promise to provide contractors to the client, this indicates that the entity
controls the service before it is transfemred to the client. This includes thé acceptability of the service meeting the client's specifications. In such
cases the Group is acting as principal. Revenue recognised is the gross amount billed to the client for the services of the temporary workers.
This includes revenues from the placement of temporary contractors where the Group has a contract management services contract with'the -
client. .

Contract management services ~ temporary contractors arranged by third party ogencteé

The Group acts as an agent when its primary responsibility is o provide administrative support to clients, acting as an intermediary between
two parties. The Group does not control the service provided to the client as the primary responsibility to deliver the services to the client sits
with a third party agency. Revenue is recognised as the commission only (exclusive of costs of the worker).

Permanent placements
Revenue arising from permanent plccements is recognised on acceptance of the candidate or on start date, subject to the controctucl
- agreement. Provision is made for the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January’ 2023

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(e) Revenuerecognition ‘ continued
Revenue earned on a retained basis
Recruitment and assignment fees are considered as a performance obligation, delwered over time. When revenue is recognised over time, it
is necessary to determine the entity’s performance towards satisfaction of the performance obligation. Revenue can therefore not be
recognised until the entity has performed a service that will take it closer to fulfilling the performance obligation. Under IFRS15 revenue for
permanent executive recruitment and assignment fees is based on a percentage of a candidate's remuneration pcckoge recognised over
time as the services are provided, typlcolly in two stages: shortlist and placement fee. Provision is made for the éxpected cost of obligations.
where employees do not work for the specified contractual period. -

~ Commissions )
Under IFRS 15, mcremenfcl costs incured in obtaining a contract (such as sales commissions) are recognised as an asset and amortised over
the life of the contract if they are expected to be recovered from the client. Given the short-term naturé of the Group's contracts, the Group
elected to take the practical expedient offered under IFRS 15 for contracts Iess thon 12 months, allowing commissions to be expensed as
incumed. -

Development work

For fixed pnce development work revenue is recognised on the percentage completion basis, using pre-specnfled milestones or a client sign-
off to trigger révenue recognition and the estimate of profit. Revenue from business process ouisourcmg is recognlsed as services are
rendered, based on a time and materials basis.

.

) Investmenis
Investments in associated undertokings {‘associated companies') are stoted at the omount of the Group's share of net assets.

(g) Property, plant and equipment
Propenrty, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated deprecmhon and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their re5|duol values over their useful ||ves using ihe sirclght-llne )
method, on the following bases:

© Leosehold improvements term of the lease
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  * 5 Years
Office equipment, 5 Years
Computer equipment ’ 3-10Years
Motor vehicles o 25% reducing balance

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant or
equipment is determlned as the dlfference between the sale proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement. :
Property, plant and equment purchcsed to deliver outsourcing projects, which have been recharged to clients at cost, remain the legal

) property of the Group. The cost of the asset is capitalised within current assets and charged to cost of sales over the contract length.

s

Nash Squared Holdings Limited ) : . * Annual Report & Accounts 2023



Financial Statements . o ' : ._ 22 «
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements : -
confinped '
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For the 12 month perlod ended 31 Jonuory 2023

3. Ssignificant accounting policies .continued

(h) Leases _
This note sets out the Group's IFRS 16 accounting policy,.

Leases, from a lessee perspective, are recognised as d right-of-use asset and a correéponding lease liability at the date when the leased asset
- is available for use by the Group. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are iniﬁclly measured on a net present value basis and are
recognlsed as part of ‘Right-of-use asset’,'Short-term lease liabilities' and ‘Long-term lease liabilities’ in the consolidated stofemenf of financial
posmon :

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:
. a) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

b) variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rote; . :

c) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, if any;

d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain it will exercise that option; and

e} payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option. ,

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease (if that rate can be determined), or the incremental borrowing
rate (IBR), being the rate the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic
environment with similar terms and ¢onditions. In determ:nmg the IBR to be used the Group applies judgement to estcbhsh the suitable
reference rate and credit spread.

Each lease payment is allocated between the Iiobility and finance costs, within finance costs in the income statement.

Lease payments are presenfed as follows in the Group statement of cash flows:

* payments for the interest element of recognlsed lease liabilities are included in ‘interest paid® within cash flows from financing ochvmes, and
» payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from financing activities. .
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost compirising the following:

a) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

b) any lease payments made ot or before the commencemenf date less any lease incentive recelved

c} any initial direct costs; and : : : .
For short-term leases (lease term of less than 12 months) ond leases.of low value assets {such as personal computers and office furnlture) the

. Group has opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permmed by IFRS 16. This expense is presented within other expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit and Ioss and other comprehensive income.
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(i) Foreign currencies :
The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the curency of.the primary economic environment in which it
operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group
company are expressed in sterhng which is the functional currency of the Company, ond 'rhe presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual comparies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional cumency (foreign
cumrencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are re=translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items camied at
fair value that are denominated in fore|gn currencies are translated ot the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determmed
Non—monetory items that are measured in terms of historical costin a forelgn cumrency are not re-translated.

For the purpose of presenﬁng consolidoted financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated at
“exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the

period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dote of transactions are used.

Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in a separate componenf of equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. :

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and I|cb|Imes ‘of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(i) Intangible ossets
Intangible assets which are.acquired separately, or through a business combxnchon are carried at cost less accumulated omorhsohon ond’
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis. The Group does not have any ossets, other than goodwnll wufh infinite useful lives. Any impairment is recognised
immediately in the income statement. ’
Development costs are capitalised as an intangible asset if all of the requirements of IAS 38 lntqnglble Assets' are met. The amount initially
recognised for internally generated infongible assets is the sum of the expenditure incumred from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no intemally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, intemally generated intangible assets are
reported at cost less accumulated omomschon and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible csse'rs that are acquired
separately.
As part of the acquisition during the period, the following separately identifiable assets were |den'r|f|ed

Customer relationships © 8-14Years
Brands 1-10Years
Internally developed soffwore 6 Years
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

3 Significant accounting policies . continued

(k) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible ossets ) )

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If-any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the
asset's.camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows {cash-generating units}.

. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of sale and value-in-use. In ossessmg value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present volue using a discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased t6 the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased canmying amount does not exceed the original canying value prior to any impairment charges.
y .

(1) Financial instruments )

" Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes o party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the Group's coniractual rights to the cash flows expire or the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financla) assets

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active.market are
classified os ‘loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured af amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial. For frade receivables, generolly this results in recognition at nominal value less any allowance for doubtful debts.

Financiaql assets which are not classified as loans and receivables, but do not meet the held to collect business model'and contractual cash
flow criteria as set out in IFRS ¢ are classified as ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ (‘FVOCI'). A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset. Financial assets in this category are classified os
current assets. All other financial assets that cannot be clossified under amortized cost or FVOCH are measured at fair value through profit and
loss {*FVTPL'}. .

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities'. A financial liobility is classified as FVIPLf it is held for trading or
specifically designated as such to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise..
Financial liabilities ot FVTPL are stoted at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the profit ond loss.

Other financiol I|cb|I|t|es including borrowings, are initially measured ot fair value, net of transaction costs. Other flncncucl liobilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The
effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash pbyments through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net camrying amount on initial recognition. .

" Nash Squared Holdings Limited ) . Annual Report & Accounts 2023



»25  Financial Statements :
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Sfotements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Fmancml Stcn‘ements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

3. Significant accounting bollcies continued
(1)(i) Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial ossefs

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be mecsured subsequently at amortised cost or fair value-on
the basis of the entity's busmess model for managing the financial assets and the controc'ruol cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that are held to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contrcctucll cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstondmg are measured subsequently at amortised cost;

" Debt mstrumenfs that are held to collect the contractual cash flows and to.sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cosh flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

All other debt investments and equity |nvestmen'rs are measured subsequently at fair value fhrough profli orloss (FVTPL).
Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

a) The GroOp may imevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by .an acquirer in o business combination in other comprehensnve income;

and
b) The Group may u‘revocobly designate a debf investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI cnfenc as measured at

FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
"In the cument period, 1he Group has not de5|gncn‘ed any debt investments that meet the amortised cost or FVIOC! criteria as measured at
FVTPL.
When a debt investment measured at FVIOCl is derecognised, the cumulohve gain or.loss previously recognlsed in other comprehensive
" income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at.
FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain'or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is subsequently transferred to
retained earnings.
Debt mstrumenis that are measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to |mp01rment
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment of financial assets ]

IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, rather than anincured credit loss model to be applied. This requires the assessment. of the
expected credit loss on each class of financial asset at each reporting date. This assessment should take into consideration any changes i in
credit risk since the initial recognmon of the financial asset. The main class of financial asset held by the Group are rade receivables, which
are short-term in nature. .

The directors of the Group have reviewed and assessed existing financial assets using reasonable and supportable information to determine
credit risk and concluded that there is no material financial impact on the Group.

(m) Share capital .

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Where any Group compony purchases the Company's equity share capital (own shares), the
consideration paid is deductible from equity atiributable fo the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed
of. Where such shares are subseqqently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders.

(n) Tax v

Current tax N N ' . -
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs frgm net profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tox is calculated using tax rotes that have been enacted or substantively enocfed by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax .

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Defemred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and defemred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition
{other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profif.

Deferred tax liabilitics arc recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and inferests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in-the foreseeobl§ future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future: -

The canying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Defered tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or
substonﬁvely enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited in other comprehensiveé income, in which case the defen'ed taxis also deolf with in other comprehensive income.

(o) Dividend dlstrlbuﬂon . .
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recogmsed asa Iloblllty in the Group's fnonC|c1I statementsin the penod in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

P) Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Wherever possible, the Group operctes defined contribution pension schemes, under which the Group pays fixed com‘nbuhons mto separate
entities. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions. Pension costs are charged to the statement of profit and
loss in the period in which they arise. In Belgium and Switzerland, legislation requires the operation of pension schemes which contain an
element of defined benefit, the obligations under which are fully insured and there are no unrecorded liabilities. Amounts related to these
schemes were considered by the Group to be immaterial during the period thus Group accounted for these as defined contribuﬁor) schemes.

Share-based payment iransacﬂons : ,

Where shore options are awarded to employees, the fcnr value of the options at the date of grant is charged fo profit or loss over the vesting
-period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each
balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over fhe vesting period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest.

Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for the failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also takés into account non-vesting conditions. These are either factors beyond the control of either party (svuch as
a target based on an index) or factors which are within the control of one or other of the parties (chh as the company keeping the scheme

Termination beneﬂts

Termination benet’ ts are payable when employment is termlncted before the normal retirement date or when an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminating
the employment of cumrent employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.

Bonus plan .
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged.

Government grants

Government grants are accounted for under the accruals model. Agrant thct becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised in other
income in the period it becomes receivable. This includes the Government Coronavirus'Job Retention Scheme. The Group has not benefited
from other forms of government assistance or received grants relating to expenditure on non-current assets.

(q) Provisions N
.Provisions are recognised when the Group has a presen’r obl|gct|on (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable thot the
Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised
ds a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required fo settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking info account
the risks and uncertainties sumounding the obligation. Discounting is applied only when the effect is material.

(r) Bormrowing costs
Short-term borrowing costs including invoice discounting fees are written off as incumred. Long-term borrowing costs are recognised on an
amortised cost basis over the relevant period of the borrowing term.

(s) Working capital facilities
The Group has access to working capital finance facilities provided by its bankers in the form of a confidential frade receivables finance
facility which is secured by a floating charge over the Group's assets. The borfowings under this are included within cuirent liabilities and
described gs borrowings on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position and the facility is secured specifically against the
Group's trade receivables. Trade receivables are included within trade receivables in the Group's consolidated statement of fmoncml
position.
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3. Significant accounting policles continued

(t) Exceptional items :
Exceptional iterns are significant items that are presented separately on the face of the consolidated statement of profit and loss due to their
nature and/or size to assist in providing a better indication of the Group's underlying trading performance. Further information is provided in
- note 10 of the financial stotements. ’

In the reporting of financial information, the Group uses certain measures that are not required under IFRS. Management considers that these
additional measures (commonly referred to as ‘alternative performance measures' or *APMs’) provide shareholders with valuable additional
information on the performance of the business. These measures are consistent with those used internally, and are considered critical to
understanding the financial performance of the Group. APMs are also used to enhance the comporcblllty of information between reporting -
periods, by adjusting for exceptional or items considered to be distorfive to trading performance which may affect IFRS measures, to aid
shareholders in understanding the Group's performance. These APMs are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures. The
only APM presented by the group is for exceptional items {Note 10). The APMs mentioned relate to the EBITDA (excludlng exceptions) and
operating profit (excluding exceptionals) as defined in the strategic report on page 2. .
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4. Financial risk management

Financing

The Group s principal financial instruments are overdrafts, cash and short-term deposnfs aninvoice dascounhng fccm’ry and a senior finance
debt syndicated facility. The Group has other financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its
operations. Acquisitions are financed through a mixture of operating cash flow and equity. Working capital finance for day-to-day
requirements is provided through operating cash generation, invoice discount facilities and small short term overdraft facilities. Where
applicable, funds are fhen made available for the financing of the Group’s subsidiaries through intercompany loans.

Objectives, policies and strategies .

The most S|gn|f|cont treasury exposures faced by the Group are raising finance, mcncglng interest rates and currency posmons as well as
investing surplus cash in high-quality assets. The Board has established clear parameters, including levels of authority, on the type and use of
financial instruments to manage these exposures Transactions are only undertoken if they relate to underlying exposures cnd cannotbe
viewed as speculative. :

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide returms
for shareholders and benefifs for other stakeholders and to maintain an opfimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital for the Group. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may od]usi the omount of dividends paid to shareholders, return ccpncl to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

2023 - 2022

: N _ £ 000 ’ £'000
Borrowings . ' _ : 94,191 55312
Total equity : , 106,237 97,615
“Total funding . ' . ’ 200,428 152,927
Gearingratio % . ] : - 47.0% 36.2%

Interest rate risk management .
The Group's policy is to minimise |n1erest charges through cash pooling and active cash management. The group also monitors inflation risk
and any potential impact on its external debt servicing requirements. . .

Market risk and foreign exchange risk management .

The Group's activities expose it pnmcmly to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group's
policy is to minimise foreign currency risk. The Group manages ifs exposure on equity investments in overseas subsidiaries through foreign
currency bomrowings. The currency risk of holding assets and I|ob|||hes in foreign curencies across the Group is managed by partially matching
foreign cumrency assets with foreign currency lidbilities.

The Group's operating profit exposure to foreign.currency transiation is primarily in respect of the US dollar and the Euro.

Credit risk . .

. The Group has no significant concentration of credit riskIt has policies in place 'ro ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and historically there are low levels of debt write-off throughout the Group. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers, spread ocross dlverse industries.and geographical areas. The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to
a single customer.

_ Nash Squared Holdings Limited ’ ' . ' Annual Report &'Accobnts 2023



Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Siatemenis
continued

30 «

‘Notes to the Consolidated Fmancml Siatements
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4. Financial risk management continued
Liquidity risk .
Prudent liquidity risk management |mplles maintaining sufficient cash and committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group's liquidity reserve {comprising undrawn borrowing facility, cash and invoice discounting) on the basis of expecfed cash flow. All
borrowings are short term other than the syndicated senior finance facility. The.Group's main invoice finance facility was most recently '
renewed in January 2023.

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group's accounting policies the directors are required to make judgements {other than those involving estimations)
that have a significant impact on the amounts recognlsed and to make estimates and assumptions about the canying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily cpporent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other'factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The es’rirﬁofes and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 'ro accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revmon affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision offects
both curent and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of opplylng the Group's accounting policies and that
have fhe most significant effect on'the amounts recognlsed in financiol sTctemenfs

Share based payments .

-The Group has exercised judgement in determining that the share option scheme which is based on the future sale price of the Group by the
current shareholders reflects performance-based remuneration which should pass through the income statement. Management has ’
estimated the value of the share option scheme at the date of initial grant and will vest the amount through share option charge on the
income statement up to the expected exercise date. The exercise date used is also a management estimate.

- The presentation of selecfed items as exceptlonol items
The Group applies judgement in identifying the significant non-recurnng items of income and expense that are recognised as exceptional to
. help prowde an indication of the Group's underlying business performance. See note 10 for further details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporhng period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material cd1u51ment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below. .

Purchase price allocation

As part of the acquisition purchase price allocation management was required to make various judgements and estimations in relation to the
values placed on intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each cash-generating unit. Manogement utilised various market analysis, and
valuation techniques as well as forward-looking forecasts as at the time of acquisition which are inherently judgemental.

Impairment of goodwill and investments
Determining whether the canying value of goodwill or an investment is impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-
generating units fo which goodwill or investment has been allocated. The valle-in-use calculation requires management to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. These
include forwcrd-looking forecasts which are inherently judgemental. The camying amount of goodwill at 31 January 2023 was £94.8m. The
carrying value of the investment held in the parent company at 31 January 2023 was £108.6m. The key assumptions and sensitivities in the
value-in-use calculations are set out in note 15.

6. Segment information
IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ requires disclosure of information about the Group's operating segments. It requires a management approach
under which segment information is presented on a similar basis to that used for internal reporting purposes. The chief operating decision
maker in the business has been identified as the Group Bocrd Services provuded by each reportable segment are Lecdershxp Services,
Technology Recruitment and Solutions. .

The accounting policies adopted by each segment are consistent and as described in the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
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6. Segmentinformation  continued .
The Group Board analyses segmental information as follows:

Revenue o N : ' ‘ o 2023 - 2022
Geographical ) ) . ’ £' 000 ' £' 000
United Kingdom & Ireland . A 365,363 . 308,754.
Mainland Evrope ' ' ) ' ) » ) 204,527 195,072
Benelux : . : : © 163,328 157,610 -
Central Europe ' B g o 41,199 37,462
‘United States i . ‘ B 156,271 115,312
Asla Pacific i ' . ) 22,255 } ] 39,924
Total revenue - ’ : 748,416 659,062
Service Line . ) ' o
Technology Ré(}:mitmeni n . ' ' : 677,441 603,965
Technology Solutions . ' 70,975 55,097

Total revenue . : 748,414 659,062

Operating profit and profit before tax

Geographical . .
United Kingdom & Ireland ™ - ' ' . - , 13,465 . 12,361
Mainland Europe : ‘ : 7,378 T 7,282
Benelux ‘ ' . 7.300 6,984
Central Europe A : ' ' 78 298
_United States : . ' ' 6,652 . 6,384
Asla Pacific : _ o ' 3,359 1,948
Total obe[aﬂng profit before group and central service costs and other income - 30,854 27,975
Service Line : ’ . )
Technology Recruitment . . ’ ’ 23,640 21,069
) Technology Solutions . : . . 7214 6,906
Total operating profit before group and central service costs and other income ' '3Q,854 » 27,975
Group and central service costs _ . . ' (8.380) ) (9.259)
Other income : ' ) _ : o ' . '(174) -
Total-operating profit before exceptional items 7 ) 22,300 - 18,716
Exceptionalitems ' o . : (7.015) - (1,293)
Total operating profit , . - 15,285 17,423
Finance costs - (3,326) 4 " (1,714)
Exceptional finance costs - : . A - . (40) (30)
Profit before tax from continuing operations . “ ) 11,919 15,679

The segment information reported above does not include any amounts for discontinued opercﬁohs, which are described in more detail in
‘note 32. . C ’
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7. Finance costs

2023 2022

. £000 ~ £000
Net iriterest on bank borrowings ‘ s 2975 . 1,435
Interest expense on lease liabilities . - : . 351 - 279
Fihance costs ' o N _ ) 3,326 1.714
. 8. Operating profit )
The followihg items have been included in armiving at operating profit from continuing operations:
2023 '2022
£000 . - £000
Bad debt provision and debts directly (released)/raised o ) ) . (162) . 140
‘Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ) 2,044 '2,1 24"
Depreciation on right of use assets . . ‘ 4,803 4,824
Amortisation of intangible assets ' : ' 6719 6,824
. Operating lease rentals payable : ’ . 219 1,322
Loss/{profit) on foreign exchange . ' (464) : 45
9. Auditor‘s'remunerotion
The analysis of the duditgr‘s remuneration is as follows:
1
2023 2022
. ) ) . £' 000 £' 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's Annual Report 239 . . 207,
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the-Cor_npcny‘s subsidiaries pursuant to 446 V i 469
legislation . .
Total audit fees ' ' ' 685 616

Total fees ) : ’ 685 614

No services were performed pursuant to contingént fee amangements. There were no other non-audit fees incurred in'the current period.
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

\ J
10. Exceptional items
Exceptional items
2023 2022
. - £'000 - £000
Acquisition costs : : ’ : ’ 4,522 -
Impairment of intangible assets . ’ ' - 2,355 -
Transaction costs ' . . . ’ . 694 : 266
Property exit costs . o ' ' . {350) ‘ 932
Optimisation projects ‘ o . ' 59 _ 47
Other ‘ o : . (265) 48
Total excepfional items . . . - . 7015 1,293

-~

During the period, the Group ccqmred Het Flexhuis BV and Knoldus Group (see note 31 for further details). The Group |ncurred exceptional
costs related to the acquisitions |nclud|ng professional and legal fees. These amounted to £4.6m.

- During the period, the Group disposed of its Alumni sub-group (see note 32 for further details). The disposal resulted in the |mpc|rmem of
‘attributable brand and customer relationship assets 1oiolllng £2.4m.

The Group inccured various transaction costs that included selling off a part of the business, restructuring of relevant divisions, investments in
key areqs. -

Exceptional finance costs

2023 . 2022
, . £' 000 £000
Exceptional finance costs . - 40 30

During the cument financial year Ioon arangement fees of £0.04m were mcurred During the prevnous fmoncml yecr £0.03m was incurred in -
transitioning oll LIBOR loans to the new risk free rate, SONIA.

"11. Otherincome

2023 . 2022

£000 £ 000
Interest received : ) ) 340 129
Job retention fuough scheme . o - . - 30
Total otherincome ~ B N - 340 159

As a result of Covid-19 during the prior period the Group took o'dAvonfcge of government job retention schemes whereby a portion of salaries
were reimbursed for furloughed staff. There was no claim made against this scheme in the current year.
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12. Employees and directors

UK & Ireland Europe  Rest of World Total

Average number of people employed .
Executive directors ’ . 6 _— - 6
" Sales , » S 226 249 63 538
Administrative ' . o B 133 104 170 407
Employees |nc|uded within cost of sales ' ’ ’ R 122 ' 447 l,958. .. 2527
Total for the 12 month period ended 31 Januory 2023 . . 487 800 : 2191 3,478
Averag‘evnumber of people employed. . UK & Ireland Europe Rest of World ‘ Total
"Executive directors v o 6 : - - )
Sales . . R 235 254 67 , 556
Administrative : ) . 106 91 121 318
Employees included within cost of sales -, ) 100 . 431 1,581 - 2,112
- Total for the 12 month period ended 31 Jonuary 2022 ' 447 ) 776 1,769 - 2,992
No directors or employees were employed by fhe:éompony during the period. ‘
2023 2023 2023 . 2022 2022 2022
Cost of . Admin Total ’ Cost of Admin Total
. sales expenses - sales expenses
Total staff costs for the Group- £' 000 £'000 £ 000 ' £' 000 £ 000 £000
Wages and salaries . 56,423 56,053 112,476 48,620 45,184 93,804
Social security costs o . 8.105 - 7373 . 15478 6,405 8,070 T 14,475
Pension costs ' . . 819 ; 2,456 3,275 910 2,382 ' 3.292
Total . + 65,347 65,882 131,229 - 55,935 55,636 111,57
Directors' emoluments in respect of qualifying services to the Group were as follows; * 202 3 . 2022
Directors' remuneration ' ' : ' £ 000 . £'000
Aggregate emoluments . o B : 1,424 : 1.373
Pension contributions ' . ' . .74 S 69
Share:-based payments o © 90 90"
Total director's remuneraﬂo.n . . . 1,588 . 1,532
Highest paid director ‘ . .
Aggregate emoluments . : o 692 - 652
Pension contributions . - ] SR ' o 45 4]
Share-based payments : o : : ' 50 .50
Total highest paid director - . . : c R 787 743

In accordance with the Companies Act 2004, directors’' emoluments above represent the proporhon of ’totcl emoluments po:d or payable in
respect of qualifying services.
During the period the directors received no emoluments for non-qualifying services which are required to be disclosed.
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13, Tax ) - _— ' 2023 2022

. , £' 000 £ 000
Corporation fax - UK ’ v . . . 1,261 317
Corporation tax - overseas ' : : ' B 5,149 3,145
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods ' - ‘ 893 - (654)
Total current tax expense . ' . 7.303 2,808
Decrease in defemed tox liability . ' (2,187) _(i67)
Total deferred tax credit . : (2,187) {167)
Total tax charge i o ] , ‘ . T 5116 - 2,641

4 Continuing and discontinued operctions
Tax charge from continuing operations 5116 2,641

Tax charge from discontinued operations . . . - ' -
' ' 5114 2,641

" The tax rate used for the reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 19.00% {2022: 19.00%) which was in effect the entire period.
The difference are explained below for the 12 month pen'éd ended.31 January 2023 using the UK standard rate of corporation tax:

2023 ’ 2022
) £ 000 £ 000
Profit before tax - continuing operations ' : . . - 11,919 15,741
Tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% K ’ 2,265 2,9
“Effects of: A ' o
Expenses not deductible and other permanent ifems o o 1,593 - 941
Income not-taxable A ~ . {7) : ‘ -
" Tox losses for which no defemed tax is recognised ' : 7 -
Adjustments to cumrent tax in respect of prior year adjustments - - . 893 (654)
Effect of changes in tax rates on defemed tax balances . 87) - 717
Deferred tax adjustment in respect of prior years ) . ©{109) . 434 -
Profits taxed at overseas rates - .. ’ © 551 ’ (211)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset ’ 0 (1.577)
Total taxation } o 5116 2,641
Cument tox: , i " _ - ) .
Tax in the period : o - 6,410 3,462
"Adjustments in resbec’r of prior periods i ' 893 . (654)
Total current tax ' ] o » 7,303 2,808
Deferred tax: )
Origination and reversal of timing differences i ’ ‘ (2135) ‘ (1.318)
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances ’ 58 77
Prior period adjustment o deferred tax ’ : ’ (110) 434
Total deferred tax credit . (2,187) - (167)
Total tax charge . 5114 2,641
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023

13. Tax continved . . .

The Finance Act 2020 included legisiation to maintain the main rate of UK corporation at 19%, rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020.
The change to the main rate of corporation tax wos substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and therefore included in these
financial statements. Temporary differences have been remeasured using these enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the
liability is settled or the asset redlised. .

The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included an increase to the UK's main corporation tax rate to 25%, which is due to be
effective from 1 April 2023. These changes were substantively enacted ct the balance sheet date and hence have been reflected in the
measurement of deferred tax balances where opphcable

' 2023 2022
Deferred tax £' 000 £ 000

Deferred tax assets:
Deferred tax asset to be settled ofter more than 12 months ‘ ) ) 1,059
Deferred tax liabilities: : '

Deferred tax liability to be settled after more than 12 months ’ . © . (11,490) {7.584)

Deferred tax liability to be settled within 12 months . o - -{1,066)
’ © o {11,490) (8.650)
Net deferred tax liability - . o . {10,431) {8.650)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is @ legally enforceable right to set off curent tax assets against current tax liabilitiés
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis. The table above sets out the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes.

The deferred tax position is analysed below: Accelerated Accrued
o : Acquired capital Interest
Intangibles allowances Tax losses charges Other Total
. £000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £' 000 '
1 February 2021 . ) {13.339) (47) 1.549° 2,482 500 (8.855)
Movement : - 830 IR (627) (732) 507 167
Foreign exchange - - . - : 38 38
31 January 2022 (12,509) . 142 922 1,750 1,045 (8,650)
Acquired in acquisition (3.621) - - - - (3.621)
Disposals ' - oo "~ (358) - - (358) -
Movement : ‘ 2,115 (109) 131 (266) ., 316 2,187
Foreign exchange - - - - 1 11
31 January 2023 (14,015) 33 695 1,484 1,372 (10,431)

Defemed tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary dlfferences, and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods in which they are realised. The rates

enacted or substantively enacted by the UK Govermment for the relevant periods of reversal are 25% The rates enacted by the US
Govemment for the relevont periods of reversal was 26% from 22 December 2017.

Due to the uncertainty of recoverability, deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses, depreciation in excess of accelerated capital ollowcnce
and deductible temporary differences of £Nil (2022: £Nil) have not been recognised. .

Deferred tax on intangible assets relates to a deferred tax liability raised on separately identified intangible assets recognised as part of the
acquisition of the Nash Squared Group. The balance is released proportionately in line with the amortisation of the underlying intangible
assets. £2,067k was released during the period. The dacquisition of Flexhuis on 1 July 2022 and Knoldus on 12 January 2023 resulted in additional
deferred tax liabilities raised on intangible assets amounting to £1.4m and £2.2m respectively. :
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14. Dividends .

The dividends paid in the period were £0.9m (2022 £1.2m). This amounted to 1.22p per share {2022: 1.68p per shore) No dlwdends were

proposed subsequen’r to penod end.

2023 2022
£' 000 £' 0600
_ Dividends declared'and paid during the period 894 1,235
15. Intangible assets Customer Brand: ‘ Brand: Brand: Brand: Brand: © Brand: Brand: Internally
. relaﬁon‘-, Harvey Alumni TalentiT Nashtech Lafitude Knoldus Flexhuis developed
ships . Nash ) . 36 software Total
. £'000 £000 £'000 £' 000 . £'000 ’ ':i‘ 000 £' 000 £' 000 £ oob ‘ £' 000 .
Cost o
At 31 January 2021 62,115 6,100 1,600 700 . 1,400 281 - - 1,000 73.196,
At 31 January 2022 62,115 | ‘ 6,100 " 1,600 700 1,400 - 281 - - . 1,000 73,196
Acquisitions 12,244 - - - - - 249 2,099 - 14,592
Disposals . (2.100) {100) (1,600) - - - - - - (3.800)
At 31 January 2023 72,259 4,000 - 700 1,400 281 249 2,099 1,000 83,988
- Amortisation .
At 31 January 2021 10,385 1,373 360 158 315 168 - - 375 13,134
Charge for the 12 month period 5.564 610 160 70 ' 140 113 - - 167 6,824
At 31 January 2022 15,949 1,983 520 228 " 455 281 - - 542 19,958 -
Charge for the 12 month period 5,568 603 53 70 140 - 13 105 167 6719 -
. Impairment ' 1,264 64 1,027 - - - - - - 2,355
Disposals (2,100) {100} (1.600) .- - - - - - (3.800)
At 31 January 2023 20,681 2,550 - 298 595 281 13 105 709 25,232
Camrying amount \ ]
At 31 January 2022 ' 46,066 4117 1,080 472 945 - - - ‘458 53,238
At 31 January 2023 51,578 3,450 - 402 805 - 236 1,994 291 58,756
Goodwill £' 000
At 31 January 2021 70,065
Remeasurement (502)
At 31 January 2022 69,563
Acquusmons 27.512
Goodwill written off following disposal (Note 32) {2.276)
At 31 January 2023 94,799
Intangible assets (including goodwill)
At 31 January 2022 122,801
At 31 January 2023

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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15." Intangible assets continued

The ccrryiﬁg amounts of goodwill at acquisition and at period end allocated by cash-

generating unit (CGU') are as follows: 2023 2022
Goodwill . ' - o - £000 : £' 000
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland ’ . . : 30,762 30,762
Tech Recruitment - Belgium 11,700 . 11,700
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands ) ' o 11,803 . 7.525
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe - o : 1,803 . 1,803
Tech Recruitment - USA : . 10,986 10,986
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland - - ' ' o - 1,036
Leadership Services - Nordics . ' . ] : . - ) 1,240
Solutions - Nashtech Co . 4,511 4,511
Solutions - Knoldus (Note 31) ' ‘ . 23,234 g
' 94,799 . 69,563

During the period the goodwill in respect of each CGU was tested forimpairment in accordance with 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. All CGU's
were assessed to have a value-in-use in excess of their respective canying values, thus no impairment adjustments to goodwill were
considered necessary. Knoldus was acquired in the financial year (Note 32) and was not subjected to impairment testing. Leadership Services
represents the Alumni sub-group which was disposed of in the period (Note 33).

The assumptions dppliéd in the impairment review are consistent with fhose applied within the Group's long-term strategic plan, approved by
management and the Board. The assumptions are based on latest industry forecasts and the expectations of management given their past
experience. The key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations are disclosed below.

Average growth rate in first five Long-term growth rui'e‘

. yedars
Significant cush-genefcﬂné unit - - -, 2023 . 2022 ’ 2023 2022
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland K 12.6% ‘12.7%. 2.6% i 2.9%
Tech Recruitment - Belgium : . 23.5% ° 18.6% . 5% . 2.5%
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands ’ 287% 17.4% : 4.3% ' 2.1%
. Tech Recruitment - Central Europe o 40.8% (13.1%) 38% 2.7%
Tech Recruitment - USA L. ) . . 219% - 19.8% 3.5% 4.4%
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland ’ ‘ : 0.0% 11.3% . 0.0% 2.9%
Leadership Services.- Nordics A - 0.0% 222% 0.0% 4.4%

Solutions - Nashtech ’ 38.7% ° 31.4% - 4.3% 3.7%

The five year average growth rate has been utilised for all cash generating entities . The.terminal growth rate is based on the long-term growth
rate for each country and was on a non weighted average 3.0% (2022' 3.2%). Management believes the forecasts are ochievoble

Management has taken the current economic downtum into account and has applied an additional sensitivity percen'fcge to ensure that
Goodwill does not need to be impaired should there be a further downturn.

The pre-tax discount rote used was based on the |ndusfry weighted average cost of capital for each country and was on average 17.5% (2022:
15.5%).

The group has caried out a sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests of each cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated,
where changes have been made to the discount rate applied. An increase of 1% in the applied discount rate to each cash generating unit
would result in o 17% fall in the headroom. Based on this analysis management believes any reasonable changes in the key assumptions used
in the impairment model would not result in any material impairment charge being recorded in the financial statement. Long term growth
rates would need to decrease by 10.1%. 5.0%, 2.5% and 11.0% in UK & Ireland, Belgium, Nethedands and USA respectively to wipeout the
headroom.
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146. Property, plant and equipment * ) o . Furniture, v
. _Leasehold Office fixtures and  Computer Motor :
Improvements  Equipment .equipment equipment vehicles Total
' £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £' 000 £ 000 £ 000
Cost . ] . ’ )
At 31.January 2021 ) 3,896 . 719 2,088 12,463 17 19,183
Additions . . 183 125 9 2,343 - 2,660
Disposals o A (1,438) (402) - (94) {1.808) - (3,742)
. Exchange adjustments . (13) . . (29) : (7) 59 L m
At 31 January 2022 : . 2,628 413 1,996 13,057 18 118,112
" Additions ' 551 . 199 116 - 2,159 L. 3,025
Acquisitions of subsidiary . : 39 259 T 36 A - 16 © 350
Disposals ' ' T (416) (82) (143) (909) - (1,550)
Exchange adjustments : ‘ 79 42 73 324 ] 519
At 31 January 2023 - ‘ ' 2,881 831 2,078 14,431 35 20,456
Accumulated depreciation . ; o )
At 31 January 2021 ) . 2,736 622 1,821 : 8,169 17 13,365
Charge for the year . : . 389 90 143 1,502 Co- 2,124 -
Disposals . (1,470} . (397) - - (92).  (1.622) - (3.581)
Exchange adjustments - : (5) {16) {9) 48 1 19
At 31 Janvary 2022 ] ) a 1,650 299 . 1,863 8,097 = . 18 11,927
Charge for the year ' . 209 118 88 1,629 - 2,044
Acquisitions of subsidiary ' . o 19 A 148 17 - 11 195
Disposals ' (350) (82) (143) " (609) - (1.,184)
Exchange adjustments 61 .3 &7 258 1 . 423
At 31 January 2023 : 1,589 519 - 1,892 9,375 30 13,405
Carrying amount " o
At 31 January 2022 o o 978 114 © 133 . 4960 - . 6,185
At 31 Janvary 2023 ' 1,292 312 186 . 5,256 5 7,051 ..

On 1 July 2‘022 the Group acquired 100% of Flexhuis BY. On 12 January 2023 the Group acquired the Knoldus Holdings Inc. group. As a result
under IFRS 3: Business combinations the Group acquired all propérty, plant and equnpment as at that date. On 1 June 2022 the Group dlvested
the Alumni sub-group. . . .
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17. Right of use assets - ) ' - ' ' Right of
. : : use assets
- Property
, . £ 000"
Cost . . . ‘
At 31 January 2021 ‘ , o : ' ‘ o 22041,
Additions * . ’ ’ . : 5520
Disposals - ' o : . ‘ ' \ B (10,142)
Exchange adjustments.. : ’ - : ‘ ' o (595}
At 31 January 2022 ' . . ) . R 16,824
~ Additions : ' o : S 4,361
Disposals ' ' : ) . . (5.835)
Acquisitions : ' ’ ) . T 68
Exchange adjustments . _ : .- i 624
At 31 January 2023 ) : . . ' : . . 16,042
Accumulated depreciation ' )
At31 January 2021 ‘ y A . S 12,426
Charge for the year ] ) . 4,824
Disposals : ) ) . : (10.023)
" Exchange adjustments  ° : ' R o (303)
At 31 January 2022 . . . ) : 6,924
Charge for the year o - . . 4,803
Acquisitions o : . 4
Disposals - . : . : . . {5,835)
Exchange adjustments - — _ C - 252
At 31 January 2023 ' . 6,148
Camrying amount. A k .
At 31 January 2022 ) . ‘ ) . ’ 9.900
At 31 January 2023 . - } ' o . 9,894

.

On1 July 2022 the Group acquired 100% of Flexhuis' BV. On 12 Jdnucry 2023 the Group acquired the Knoldus Holdings Inc. group. As a result under
CIFRS 3: Business combinations the Group acquired all right of use assets as at that date. On 1 June 2022 the Group divested the Alumni sub-group.
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17. i.eases under IFRS14 continued

The canying dm'ounf of the lease liability is as follows:

2023 2022
_ ' £ 000 £ 000

Lease liability _ '
Opening balance g , ‘ ' 10279 9907
Additions , ' o ' : 4501 . 5520
Acquisitions ’ o : ’ 68 (122)
Lease payments’ : S . : ' ) (5.215) {5.001)
Interest incurred ‘ : . s 351 279
Exchange adjustments oo ‘ . 436 (304)
At31January 2023 : o : . 10420 10,279
Cunent. S A : 6972 7.807
Non-current , ' S : N 3,448 2,472
Total v _ , . 10,420 10,279
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18. Trade and other recelvables

2023 © 2022

. . _ £ 000 "~ goo0

Trade receivables i : : 126,004 109.795
Less: Provision for estimated credit loss ' e o (628) (790}

- . _ B 125,376 109,005
Other receivables e ‘ ' 5,308, 4,251
Prepayments - o B o ‘ ) 3,165 2,841 .
Accrued.income ’ : A - _ 63,858 47,949

o ’ : 197, 707 164,046

Debtor doys were 38.6 days (2022: 35.2 days). Debtor days are calculated by reference to outstondlng debtors relative to amounts invoiced in
the preceding months up to the year end.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. As of 31 January 2023, trade receivables of £21.9m
{2022: £38.5m) were aged over 30 days but not impaired. These relate to a number of independént customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The cgelng analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2023 2022
. . " £'000 : £'000
1-2 months - . . ‘ ' 9.272 23,675
2-3 months . T : , 4722 9.827
Over 3 months ’ . ’ 7.885 4,974
' o 21,879 - 38,476

As of 31 Jonucry 2023, trade receivables of £0.63m (2022: £0.79m) were |mpc|red and provided for.

The individually impaired receivables mcnnly relate to customers who are in d|ff|cult economic situations. All the |mp0|red receivables are
more than three months overdue. In the cument period, the creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have beenincluded in
‘administrative expenses' in the consolidated sfotement of profit or loss. The other closses wnhln trade cnd other recelvcbles do not contain
impaired assets.

Mavements on the Group provision forimpairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Provisions . £'000
At 1 February 2021 ' ' _ E . 1,046
Provision utilised during the périod : . o R (256)
At 31 January 2022 ’ : . . ) 790
" Provision utilised during the period . : ' (162)
At 31 January 2023 . . : . 628
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18. Trade and other receivables continued

Current 30-66 days " 60-90 days | 90+ days ' Total

£'000 £'000 'é' 000 . £'000 £'000
Default rote ’ ] 0.00% - 1.25% 2.50% 5.00%
Gross carrying amount ) : . 104,125 9.272 4,722 ' ’7,885 . 126,004
Lifetime expected credit loss : ’ . - (116) “(118) - (394) : (628)
: 104,125 9.156 - 4,604 7.491 125,374

The Group has applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped bdsed on shored credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. . . .

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dc’re is the camying value of each class of receivable listed above. The Group does not

Jhold any collateral as security. The currency proflle of frade and other receivables is shown below.

2023 2022

o o £' 000 ' £ 000
Sterling . . ‘ 52913 43039
B0 : ' , _ 111,280 - 85,736
USDollar - : - : : 24829 - - 24839
Other cuirencies . . . © 8,685 10,432
' ' ' 197,707 164,046
The directors consider the above trade and other receivables 1o be reflected at fair value. ) '
19. Cash and cash equivalents |
, . , 2023 2022
S : . . £ 000 . £000
Bank balances . B ) 36.057 . - 30,200
Petty cash — . ' . ' 42 . o2
Total B , - : . 36,099 30,221
20. Trade and other payables
o ’ ‘ 2023 2022
£'000 " £000
"Trade payables ‘ ] o 79,620 68,267
Other tax and social se&:urify payable o : - ) ' 25311 24,919
Employee benefits payable : . E . ) ‘ 309 -
Accruals - ' By ‘ S 65,361 61,872
Other payables o ‘ 8,827 2,038

179,428 157,096

The directors consider the above trade and other payables to be reflected at fair value.
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21. Share capita!

2023 ' 2022
£000 £000.
Allotted and fully paid ‘ ) )
- 73,323,183 {2022: 73,323,183) ordinary shares of 0. OOI pence eoch . : 1 S 1

22. Otherreserves.

Fair value and other non-distributable reserves of £15.4m (2022: £15.4m) remain unchanged in the current financial period ond include £2.8m

- relating to a capital contribution movement as part of the historic share reduction exercise, £11.9m related to the fair value of the investment
as part of the acquisition under IFRS3 and the remaining £0.6m related to the movement in fair value of contingent considerations outstanding,
all of which took place in prior financial periods. ’

- Other distributable reserve consists of £68.0m (2022: £88.0m) relating to the transfer from share capital and share premium as a result of the '
'share reduction undertaken in a prior financial period. ’ ' ‘

Cumulative tronslation reserves for the year amounted to £0.6m.(2022: £2.2min deficit).

23. Retained eamings

R . “£' 000

At 31 January 2021 . o ) o . {5.378)

- Profit for the year . ' . . T ' 13,100
Dividends paid . : o . (1.235)
At 31 January 2022 ) : . . * ’ 6,487
Profit-for the year . ’ 6,689
Dividends paid _ , o _ » - : (894)
At 31 January 2023 ' I . " 12,282
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Notes to the Consolldated Fmancml Staiemenis

For the 12 month penod ended 31 January 2023

24. Group undertakings and related party transactions

Group undertakings - * ' ’ . 2023 2022
Included in loans from group underToklngs are the foIIowmg outstanding balances as at 31 January 2023 ' £ 000 o £'000. -
Loans recerable : . - - )

DBAY Funds . ' ’ ’ ' 1 ' 1

The Power of Talent Midco Limited ' 1,000 ' 994

The Power of Talent Plano Limited™ \ ’ 6 -

.The Power of Talent Topco Limited A . . . 39 -
The Power of Talent Finco Limited 7. , -

The Power of Talent Kartanesi Limited : 2,032 ) -

3,085 995

Loans payable )
The Power of Talent Midco Limited B . o ) (1,312) (1.112)

DBAY Advisors and DBAY Funds are considered related parties due to their investment in and control of the Group's ulhmcfe porenf The Power
. of Talent Topco Limited. .

25. Subsidiaries and Ultimate controlling party .

The Group consists of a'parent Company, Nash Squared Holdings Limited, |ncorporoted in the UK and registered in England cnd Wales, and a
number of directly and indirectly held subsidiaries around the world.

All subsidiary companies ore consolidated.

At 31 January 2023 the Group was a wholly owned subsidiary of The Power of Talent. Kartanesi Ltd [compony number 11665541) incorporated
and registered in Englcnd and Wales. .

The ultimate pcrent of the Group is The Power of Talent Topco Limited [compcny number: 132333C) |ncorporc1ted and registered in the Isle of -
Man, and which prepares consolidated accounts. .

The ultimate controlling party is DBAY Advisors Limi'{ed {company: number: 1261 50C) incorporc'réd cnd registered in the Isle of Mon.

A full list of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 January 2023 is shown on pages 56 - 58.

26. Pensions

The Group operates separate defmed contribution pension schemes inall Iocchons The Group's total contribution to such schemes for the 12
month period ended 31 January 2023 was £3.3m (2022: £3.2m). .

The Group's lorgest pension scheme is a defined contribution scheme provided by Scothsh Widows in the UK. Employer and employee -
coninbutlons to the scheme range between 4% ond 5% depending on the employee s length of service. :
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Notes to the Consolldated chmcu:ll Statements

For the 12 month penod ended 31 January 2023

27. Opetating leases

Operating lease commltments
The Group has total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

2023 2023 ’ 2022 2022

Properly  Vehicles, Property  Vehicles,

. ) plant and , plant and

. equipment equipment
. - . £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £' 000

Minimym lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases: )
Within one year ' 72 928 . 63 744
Later than one year and less than five years 4 24 1,042 o - 676
' 96 1,970, 43 1,420
28 ‘Other long term receivables

' 2023 2022
Nash Technologies GmbH ) £' 000 £' 000
Opening balance . . ) : 1,924 1,934
Foreign exchange - . : " 100 (10)
Closing balance v . : 2,024 1,924
‘Deferred consideration receivable £ 000 £'000
Additions o . © 5,500 -
Closing balance I : I 5500 -
o ) ' £' 000 £'000
Total other long term receivables. ) , ' ' . 7,524 1,924

" The Group has a £1.9m (€2.3m) loan receivable from Nash Technologies GmbH included within non-cument assets. The loari is due to mature
on 01 April 2033, rate is 1.5% flat. ‘ :

Deferred consideration arose on the disposal of its Alumni sub groub. Refer to note 32 for further details.
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For the 12 month period ended 3] Jonuory 2023

29 Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank overdraft, invoice discounting and various items such as trade receivables and frade
payables that arise directly from its operations. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is approximately equal to their book values.

Additional disclosures are set out in the accounting policies relating to risk management. An explonotion of the role that financial.instruments
have had during the period in the management of the Group's funding liquidity and foreign exchonge is provuded within note 4.

In accordance with IFRS 9 “Financiol Insfruments the Group has reV|ewed all contracts and conflrmed that none contain embedded
derivatives that are required to be assessed and measured as per the requirements set out in the standard. There were no material
embedded denvcmves at 31 January 2023. :

Borrowing facilities

Invoice discount facility

As at 1 February 2022 the Group had an outstanding senior finance facility totalling £18.4m. During the financial period, on 10 Jcnuory 2023 the
Group repaid its existing facility and replaced it with a new 4 year Term Loan facility of £50m. The new Term Loan is repayable in quarterly

instalments with a final repayment on maturity. Interest accrues at SONIA plus margin ranging between 4.50% and 5.00%. Arangement fees of
. £1.5m arising have been netted against the outstanding loan balance and will be amoitised over the life of the loon.

The overdraft facilities are repayable on demand and the invoice discounting facilities are available on a rolling 12-month basis. The rates on
all facilities are flochng All conditions precedent to the overdruff and |nv0|ce discounting were met at 31 January 2023.

2023 . 2023 2022 2022

Drawn bor;owing facilities (current) '000 - £'000 | ‘ '000 £'000
Invoice discounting facilities — UK £ 17,196 17.196 ° £ 17,985 17.985
Invoice discounting facilities — irelcnd € 345 - 303 € {150} (125)
Invoice discounting facilities — Belgium € 4,540 3.995 € 3.095 2,578 .
Invoice discounting facilities — Netherlands € 23,457 20,639 € 15,287 12,734
Invoice discounting facilities — USA $ 3.774 3,061 $ 5,152 3.837
Invoice discounting facilities — Crimson £ 475 " 475 £ (141) (141)
Total 3y . - 45,669 ) 36,868
. 2023 - 2023 2022 2022
Undrawn borrowing facllities . . ‘000 ’ £'000 -'600 £'000
Invoice discounting facilities - UK £ 17,804 17,804 £ 17,015 17.015
Invoice discounting facilities - Ireland "€ 3.917 3,447 € " 4,652 3,875
Invoice discounting facilities - Belgium € 4,836 4,255 K3 6,809 5,672
Invoice discounting focili’ries—Netheridnds € 10,639 } 9.361 € 20,727 17.266
Invoice discounting facilities - USA $ 8,556 . 6,939 $ 8,277 6,163
Invoice discounting facilities — Crimson - £ 2,525 2,525 £ 3.14) 3,141

Total o 44,331 : . 53,132
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For the 12 month penod ended 31 January 2023

29 Financial instruments continued

Borrowing facllities continued

Senior finance debt

As at 1 February 2022 the Group had an outstanding senior finance facility toiclllng £18.4m. Dunng the financial penod on 10 January 2023 the
Group repaid its existing facility and replaced it with a new 4 year Term Loan facility of £50m. The new Term Loan is repayable in quarterly
instalments with a final repayment on maturity. Interest accrues at SONIA plus margin ranging between 4.50% and 5%. Arangement fees of £1.5m
arising have been netted against the outstanding loan balance and will be amortised qverfhe life of the loan.

2023 2022

Senior finance debt _ ' 7 - '£'000 " £000
Opening balance : S 18,443 21,752
Repayments ' : . (18,443) {3.308)
New loans T . ' © 50,000 ‘
Arrdngement fees to'be amortised - ' : : : . . (1.478) ) -
_Closing balance ) : . ' 48,522 18,444
Cuirent ’ C i 9.333 3.309
Non-curent o ' . 39,189 - 15,135
Borrowing facllifies - Current ' . . ’ " £000 _£'000
Invoice discounting facility ) : o 45,669 - 36,868
Senior finance debt ’ S ‘ ‘ 9,333 3,309
Total v o : ‘ 55,002 - 40,177
Borrowing facllities - Non - current ‘ ' . o ' » £'000 - £'000
Senior finance debt - : 39,189 15,135
30 Defered consideration
2023’ 2022
, _ £' 000 £' 000
Opening balance ‘ . . ' ' ) . 6,758 13,834
Aéquisiﬁons . - i ) ) 11,347 .-
Remeasurement . . . : ' : : - (502)
Consideration setiled -~ ’ : o : '(7,494) {6.736)
Foreign exchange o : : 270 162
Closing balance . ) : 10,881 6,758
Current ' o » : . _ 8,054 . 6,758
Non-current : ' ' 2,827 : -

~

Defemed consideration arising on acquisitions in the period relates to the ccqwsmon of Fleth|s BV and Knoldus Group Refer to Note 32 for further
details.
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For the 12 month penod ended 31 Jonuory 2023

31. Business combinations
Acqulslﬂon of Het Flexhuls BV '
On 1 Juy 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Het Flexhuis BV, a Dutch MSP (Managed Service Programme) provider
specialising in the health care sector and incorprated in the Netherlands. The total purchase consideration was £12.1m and qualifies os a

. business as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations. )
Flexhuis BV was acquired as it is a major MSP of talent and recruitment services. Het Flexhuis has established a strong reputation in the MSP
market through its extensive expertise, well proven methodologies and custom designed tools and technology. Through this acquisition Nash
Squared will be c:ble to offer a high quality MSP solution which is an important strategic move forward fér the Group.

The provisional fair value of the net assets acquired is approximately equal to the acquiree s carmying amount. The excess of consideration
above net asset volues has been atfributed to goodwill and other identified intangible assets.

The amounts of revenue and profit of the acquiree since the acquisition date mcluded in the consohdofed statement of comprehenswe
income for the reporting period were £1.4m and £0.8m respectively.

If the acquisition of Het Flexhuis had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the amounts of revenue and profit of the acquiree
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the reporting period would have been £2.5m and £1.3m respectively.

Details of the purchase cor»isiderofion,' the net assets acquired ond the goodwill recognised were as follows: . £' 000

.- Purchase consideration

Cash paid - ' _ . : 6,218
Deferred consideration ’ . : A 4,574
Total purchase consideration ) : . . 10,792
The assets and liabilities arising at the date of acquisition were as follows: . ' ' ‘ £' 000
Cash B : 4 " 4,884
Property, plant and equipment . ‘ . o v 50
Trade and other receivables : 14,879
Trade and other payables ~ ] P - ) (17,708)
Intangible assets identified . . ' : ' . 5,842
Deferred tax on intangible assets .~ . : {1,434)
Net identifiable assets achIred ' - 6,513
Goodwill . - 4,279
Total purchase consideration s - . ’ 10,792
Cash outflow to acquire subsidiary ’ _ ] o - £'000
Cash consideration ] ' ) ) (6.218)
Cash balances acquired ’ _ . o T ’ 4,884
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired ’ B (1,334)

A portion of deferred considerafion is payable contingent upon the seller remaining in employment within the Group over the period of the
earnout. Accordingly. in line with the requirements of IFRS 3, defemred consideration with a fair value of £1.6m has been treated as a
transaction separate from the above disclosed business combination accounting and has instead been accounted for in accordance with
1AS 19 Employee Benefits.
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For the 12 month penod ended 31 January 2023

31. Business combinations (confinued)

Acquisition of Knoldus Group

On 13 January 2023, the Group acquired 100% of the Knoldus Group, a Canadian headquartered Technology Solutions provider with,
operations in India, US, Netherlands and Singapore. The cash consideration paid was £32.1m. Knoldus Group provides data, cloud cnd
machine leaming, as well high-performance real-time data systems and qualifies as a business as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

Knoldus Group was acquired for strategic and commercial reasons, which will enable Nash Squared to strengthen their presence in North®
America, and add depth and scale to their cloud and data solutions offerings. : .

The provisional fair value of the net assets acquired is approximately equal to the acquiree’s camying amount. The excess of consideration
above net asset values has been atiributed o goodwill and other identified intangible assets.

The amounts of revenue and profit of the acquiree since the acquisition date included in the consolldcted stctement of comprehensive-
income for the reporting period were £0.4m and £0.1m respectively.

If the acquisition of had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the amounts of revenue and profit of the acquiree included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the reporting period would have been £11.8m and £5.9m respectively.

Detdails of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired chd the goodwill recognised were as follows: £' 000

Purchase consideration

Cash paid : : L ' 32,074
Deferred consideration . ) ) . T 6,931
Total purchase consideration : 39,005
The assets and liabilities arising at the date of acquisition were as follows: ’ . £ 000
Cash o 7.772
Property, plant and equipment ’ ) . ’ 122
Trade and other receivables ‘ ) ) ' , 6339
.Trade and other payables (5.026)
Intangible assets identified ) 8,749
Deferred tax on intangible assets ’ (2_,]87)
Net identifiable assets acquired . 15,769
Goodwill ' . - 23,234
Total purchase consideration . ) ' 39.003
Cash outflow to acquire subsidiary . . ' o £ 000
Cash consideration ' , - _ (32.074)
Cash balances acquired o 7.772
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired : (24,302)

A portion of deferred consideration is payable contingent upon the seller remaining in employment within the Group over the period of the
earnout. Accordingly, in line with the requnrernents of IFRS 3, deferred consideration with a fair value of £20.2m has been treated as a
transaction separate from the above disclosed business combination accounting and has instead been accounted for in accordance Wlfh
IAS 19 Employee Benefns

\
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32. Discontinued operations

Disposal of Alumnl Sub- -group
On 1 June 2022 the Group disposed of its Alumnl sub-group and is reported in the current period as a discontinued operation. Financial
information relating to the discontinued opercmc_m for the period to the date of disposal is set out below

. .
Financial performance and cosh flow information

- ¢ The financial performance and cash flow informdtion presented are for the four months ended 1 June 2022 {2023 column) and the year ended
31 January 2022. : . ' ' : .

2023 2022

A » £ 000 £' 000

Revenue , . ' 8,229 '20,367
Expenses ' ] (8.122) (20.304)
Profit affter tax , S - : w07 63
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations . . ' - (221) -
Net {loss)/profit attributable to discontinued operations (114) 63

During the year, Alumni Group contributed £0.1m {2022: 0.1m) to the Group's net operating cosh flows, pond Nil (2022 Nil) in‘respect of
investing activities and paid Nil {2022: Nil) in respect of financing activities.

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations

Net assets at disposal date S . , , , £ 000

Property, Plant & Equipment ’ o . ‘ 113
Investments ; . ] o 3,208
Trade and other receivables . o ) 10,040
Cash : o ' o . 2,556
Trade and other payables . . : (9.676)
Current tax assets . o . : s ' - 356
Deferred tax assets ' S : : 358
Net assets disposed : . 6,955
Goodwill o ' _ ’ 2,266
Total net assets disposed ' _ ' 9,221
Proceeds’ _ )

- Cash consideration S 3,500
Deferred consideration ' . : 5,500
Total Proceeds - - . o 4 : 9,000

" Group loss on disposal of discontinued operations R ’ (221)
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Company Stcﬂement of Financial Posmon

As at 31 January 2023

2022

2023
Notes .£' 000 £'000
ASSETS )
Non-current assets : .
Investments - 3 108,627 108,627
Loans receivable from group undertakings 4 40,260 7.317
. ' ) i 148,887 115,944
Cunrent assets ’
Trade and other receivables - 267
Cash and cash equivalents 1 1
o ' 1 248
Total assets 148,888 114,212
LIABILITIES ’
Current liabilities .
Trade and other poyobles : (1.978) (2)
Borrowings -7 - (3,309)
. _ ! (1.978) (3.311)
Non-current liabilities
Bomowings (48,522) (15.134)
Loans payable to group undertakings 5 (18.955) (11.616)
: (67,477) (26.750) .
Total liabllities (69.455) (30,081)
Net assets 79,433 86,151
EQUITY - .
Ordinary shares é 1 1
Share Premium 10,000 10,000
Fair value and other non-distributable reserves 14,751.. - 14,751
Other distributable reserves 67.969 . 67,969
Retained loss {13.288) (6,570}
Total equity 79,433 86,151

The company financial statements on pages 52 - 55 were approved by the board and authorised for issue on its behalf by Christopher Tilley.

A A,

\

Christopher Tilley Date: 23-May-23
Director

Nash Squared Holdings Limited
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Company Stqiement of Changes in Equﬂy

For the 12 monfh period ended 31 January 2023

N

Fair value and

other non- " Other .
Share capital Sharje premium dim:::::e: d""::’:::’: 2‘:::’"';:;‘: Total
£' 000 £' 000 £'000 £' 000 . £'000 £'000

Balance at 31'January 2021 . . . 1 10,000 - -14,751 67,969 (5.790) 86,931
"Profit for the period . R oo - . - 455 455
Total comprehensive income for the period ' - - - - 455 . 455
Dividends paid . ] . Co- ) - - ‘- - {1,235) {1.,235)
Balance at 31 January 2022 . . 1 10000 =~ 14,751 67,969 *(6,570) 86,151
Loss for the period . : - ) .- - - (5.824) {5.824)
Totdl comprehensive loss for the period . - R - - (5.824) = . (5.824)
Dividends paid - - - .- - (894) (894)
Balance at 31 January 2023 . ' . 1 10,000 14,751 87,969 (13.288) 79.433
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‘Notes to the Company Fmancml S’raiements

For the 12 month périod ended 31 January 2023

1. Significant accounting policies

. The separate financial statements of the Compclny are presented as requued by the Componles Act 2006. The Compony meets the definition
of a qualifying entity-under Financial Reporting Standard (*FRS') 100, issued by the Financial Reporting Council (‘FRC!). Accordingly, the ’
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 '‘Reduced Disclosure Framework® as issued by the Financial Reporting
Council. . .

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that stdndord in relation to business
combinations, share-based payment, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of a cosh flow statement, standards not yet
effective, impairment of assets and certoln related party transactions. .

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, which is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the goods and services. The principal cccounhng policies adopted are the same os those set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements except as.noted below.

No critical judgements were applied in the parent company other those discussed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
. \ .

Investments .

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment. Impairment reviews are conducted annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement for the amount by.which the asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of sale and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessrents of the time value of

) money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been ctdjusted Assets are Grouped at the lowest
levels for whlch there are separately idénfifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

2. Profitfor the period

The loss for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2023 in the financial statements of Nash Squared Holdings Limited, the Cdmpony, was
£5.8m (2022 profit of £0.5m). As permlﬁed by 5408 Companies Act 2006, no profit cnd loss account is presented in respect of the parent
Company.

3. Investment in subsidiaries-

‘ 2023 2022
Shares in Group undertakings . : £' 000 . £' 000
Opening balance - 108,627 108,627
Additions ' . ; ’ - -
Closing balance - 108,627 108,627

. . N . ]
The directors consider that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets. The canying value of the
investments was tested against discounted future cash flows during the period. The forecasts were based on post-tax cash flows derived from
the approved budget for FY2024 and the long-term strategic plan. Management considers that these forecasts are achievable. Should future
cash flows be unable to support the carying value, an impairment would be recognised.

A full list of subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by the Company as at 31 January 2023 is presented on pages 56 -
58. o
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For the 12 month penod ended 31 Jonuory 2023

4. loans receivable from group undertakings

2023 © 2022
) * : £' 000 £'.000
Amounts owed by group undertakings : . . . 40,260 7.317

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured. The interest is charged at a 2.5% margin over LIBOR in accordance with formal loan
agreements between the parties. These are not expected to be repaid within the next 12 mqnths.

Information on each loan is included in note 24 of the nc}fes to the consolidated financial statements.

-5. Lloans payable to group undertakings

2023 . 2022
) £'000 ’ £'000
Amounts owed to group undertakings o . 18,955 11,616

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured. Interest is charged at a 2 5% margin over the bank base rate applicable in the
jurisdiction of the lender, in accordonce with formal loan agreements between the parties. These are not expected to be repcld within the
next 12 months. .

Information on each Iéon is included in note 24 of the notes to the c'onsolidotedv financial statements.

6. Share capital _
2023 2022

£'000. £' 000
Allotted and fully paid
73,323,183 ordinary shares of 0.001 pence each - ’ 2 . 1

7. Bomowings

Further details are provided in the senior finance debt section of note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Full List of Subsidiaries pf Nash Squared Holdings' Limited 3 : :

Full list of Subsidiaries

% Holding ) Principal activity
United Kingdom '
3 Noble Street, London EC2V 7EE ) L .

"Nash Squared Ltd - ' R < : 100% Holding company
Harvey Nash Ltd’ ‘ S ~ . ' 100% Recruitment consultancy
Crimson Lid . . . . 100% . ~ Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Ltd ‘ o o 100% Software constiltancy
Ireland . ‘ ’
Lower Ground Floor, 100 Mount Street, Dublin 2
Harvey Nash {Ireland) Ltd ’ - . 100% : " Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Software Ltd ’ 100% - Software consultancy
Netherlands )

Industrieweg 4, Maarssen, 3606 AS ‘ .

Harvey Nash BV ' _ ' ’ ) © 1 100% : Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Group BV v : : 100% o Holding compohy
Harvey Nash Perspective BV : . S - 100% ‘ Recruitment consultancy '
Harvey Nash Detachering BV ’ ) . 100% Recruitment consultancy
Het Flexhuis BV ’ - o : - . 100% Recruifmenf consultancy
Regus Amsterdam, Sloterdijk ,‘i'elepori Towers, Kingsfordweg 1511043 GR )

Kholdus BV ' 100% - Software consultancy
Gérmany

Grafenberger Allee 337a-c 40235 Dusseldort ) . )
Hdrvey Nash GmbH | : . ) ) 100% Recruitment consuliancy
Nash Direct GmbH ) . " 100% ¢ Recruitment consultancy
NashTech GmbH ' . . . IOO%' . Software consultancy

"Impact Executives (Germany) GmbH - . } 100% Non-trading
Belgium '

Nieuwe gentesteenweg 21/3, 1702 Groot-Bijgaarden _ )
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV S ) 100% - Recruitment consultancy

Harvey Nash NV : ) ’ 100% Recruitment consultancy

Residentie Docklands, Indiéstraat 2, 2000 Antwerpen A

eMenka NV | . - ©100% ' Recruitment consultancy

Talent IT BVBA .‘ T ' : . 100% Recruitment consultancy

Team4Talent BVBA , A . 100% . Recruitment consultancy.
Pro-Cured BVBA . ' . ' - 100% - Procurement

Switzerland ‘

Badenerstrasse 15, Postfach 8021 Zirich

Harvey Nash AG ) . 7 100% ~ Recruitment consultancy

Impact Executives Holdings AG, . ' ' ) 100% : - "Non-trading
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Full List of Subsidiaries of Nash Squared Holdings I.|m|fed
continued

Full list of Subsidiaries

% Holding Principal activity

Poland

Mokotowska 49, 00-542 Warsaw : . . )

Harvey Nash Alumni Sp.z o.o. Warsaw . 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Technology Poland Sp.zo.0. Warsaw ' ' . 100% Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Sp. zo.0. - Warsaw L 100% Sof’fwc're consultancy
India ’ .
5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM, Birla Sclence Centre Complex, Adarshnagar, Hyderabad

Harvey Nash Private Limited Hyderabad : . ) 100% ' Reci’uifmen’,r consultancy
SDF L11, NSEZ, Sector 81, Noida, UP 201304 ' ) ’ . :
Knoldus Software LLP ' v » 100% , Software .consultancy
Knoldus Technologies Pvt Ltd - ' ’ 100% ' Software consultancy.
Canada ' '

3095 Tours Rd, Mississauga, LEN3H9

NashTech Cananda:Inc . . 100% - Holding company
Knoldus Holdings Inc . . . 100% ' Softwdre consultancy

Knoldus Inc. e 100% = Software consultancy

United Stotes of America
* 1700 Route 23 North, Sulte 100, Wayne, NJ 07470

Harvey Nash Inc ” : . 100% : " Recruitment coﬁsultcncy
Harvey Nash Holdings Inc ) '100% Non-trading .
_ $BS Group Inc : 100% ' Non-trading
Broadbay Networks Inc - . ' B 100% . Non-froding
Tech Discovery LLC ) . ' : . o 100% A N Non-frading
Euro Systems International Inc . ) . 100% Non-trading N
,Apblied Concepts Inc : 100% : Non-frading
Scientific & Business Systems Inc . 100% . ‘ Non-frading
50 N, Brockway Street, Suite 3-12,.Palatine, IL - 60067 ' ) ‘ .
Knoldus Inc. ‘ 100% s Software consultancy
810, Crescent Centre Dr., Suite 120, Franklin, Tennessee 37067 ’ ’ .
Latitude 36 Inc ) . . - 100% . . Recruitment consultancy
Japan '
Tokyo Square Garden 14F, WeWork, 3-1-1 Kyoboshl Chuo-ku Tokyo, Japan 104 0031 . .
NashTech Japan KK ' : 100% .. Software consultancy
Slngupore . : : - . ' : .
One Raffles Quay, North Tower, Level 25 . \
Harvey Nash Singapore PTE Ltd ) 100% . Non-trading
Level 08-09, The Metropolis Tower 2, 11 North Buona Vlﬁla Drive, Singapore 138589 . ' ’ . .
Knoldus Consulting Pte Ltd - -~ ) 100% Software consultancy
71 Robinson Rood;#13-l29 . . A. ’ .
NashTech Singapore PTE Ltd ' K 100% ' software consultancy

{ . l
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Full list of Subéi-didr'ies

Principal activity

 %Holding - -
British Virgin Istands .*
P.O Box 957, O_ﬁshpre Incorporations Cenfre, Road Town, Tortola
Harvey Nash Ltd (BVI) ' 100% - Non-trading
Hong Kong
Unit 1501, 15/F Herley Building, 5 Queen’s Road Central, Central ’ .
Harvey Nash {Hong Kong) Ltd 100% Non-trading
Vietnam
344 Cong Hoa Street, Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh City
Harvey Nash {Vietham) Company Ltd . , 100% Software consultancy
Level 14, Saigon Cenfre Towerl, No é5 Le Lol Sfree'i, Ben Nghe Ward, Disctrict 1, H_o Chl Minh City . ’ ’
Knoldus Consulting Cormpany Ltd " 100% Software consultancy’
Australic
Suite 14.02, Level 14, 20 Hunter Street, Sydney NSW 2000 . .
NashTech Software Pty Ltd 100% A ’ Software consultancy
Harvey Nash Ltd {Australian Branch)’ 100% - Recruitment consultancy .

Nash Squared Holdings Limited |
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_Offices

Information

Offices

United Kingdom
London

" 3 Noble Street
London EC2V 7EE

Birmingham

) 4301 Waterside Cenfre
Birmithcm Business Park
Birmingham B37 7YN

Birmingham (Splnks)
Somerset House

37 Temple Street
Birmingham B2 5DP

ﬁiri’nlngham (Crimson)
Birmingham Business Park

Kings Court, 2460 The Crescent

Birmingham B37 7YE

Manchester
31 Booth Street
Manchester M2 4AF

Newcastle

'Hoults Yard, Walker Road
Newcastle-upon-Tyne
NE6 2HL

Leeds
* Maoarshalls Mill, Marshall Street
LeedsLS11 9YE

Edinburgh
Waverley Gate

2-4 Waterloo Place
Edinburgh, EH1 3EG

Gldsgow
9 George Square
Glasgow G2 1DY

Ireland

Dublin

Lower Ground Floor

100 Mount Street
Dublin2

Nosh'Squured Holdlngs Limited

Belgivm

Antwerp
Houtdok-Noordkaai

12 — 2030 Antwerpen

Brussels -

Nieuwe Gentesteenweg 21/3
1702 Groot-Bijgaarden

Ghent

Huize Minne
Kortrijksesteenweg 62
9830 Sint-Martens-Latem

Germany
Dijsseldorf

. Grafenberger Allee 337 ¢

40235 DUsseldorf

Berlin

c/o WorkRepublic, KurfUrstenstraBe ¢

10787 Berlin

Stuﬁguﬁ
Breitscheidstrasse 10
D-70174 Stuttgart

- Munich

Leonrodstrasse 52
D-80636 MUnchen

Humﬁurg
Hohe Bleichen 12
D-20354 Hamburg

Netherlands

Amsterdam

Regus Amsterdam
Sloterdijk Teleport Towers
Kingsfordweg 1511043 GR

. Utrecht

Industrieweg 4
3606 AS Maarssen

Groningen
Heresingel 19.
. 9711 ER Groningen

Sassenhelm
22, Madame Curiestraat
2171 TW Sassenheim

USA

New Jersey

1700 Route 23 North

Suite 100 -

Wayne, NJ 07470

California S
39465 Paseo Padre Parkway *
Suite 3000

Fremont, CA 94538

Tennessee )
810, Cresent Centre Dr.,
Suite 120

Franklin, Tennessee 37067

Hiinois .

50N, Brockway Street
Suite 3-12

Palatine, IL 60067

Canada )
Mississauga
3095 Tours Rd

" Mississouga, LSN3H9 -

India

Hyderabad

5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM
Bira Science Centre Complex
Adarshnagar, Hy_dercibcd

Noida -

SDF L11, NSEZ
Sector 81 )

Noida, UP-201304

' Australia

Sydney - , 4
Suite 14.02, Level 14

20 Hunter Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Vietnam

Hanoli

4F & 6F, HITC Building
239 Xuan Thuy Road
Cau Giay District, Hanoi

Ho Chi Minh City
e.town Building

364 Cong Hoa Street
Tan Binh District

Ho Chi Minh City

Ho Chi Minh City

Level 14, Saigon Cenire Tower 1-

No é5 Le Loi Street
Ben Nghe Ward, District 1
Ho Chi Minh City

Danang

3rd Floor, Diamond Time Complex,

35 Thai Phien Road
Hai Chau District
Danang

Slngcpore

Level 08-09, The Metropolis Tower 2

11 North Buona Vista Drive
Singapore 138589
Singapore

71-Robinson Road

~#14-01
Singapore, 068895

Japan

Tokyo

Tokyo Square Garden 14F
WeWork

ne .

Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 104-0031

Switzerland
Zirich

" Badenerstrasse 15

Postfach, 8021 Zurich

Poland
Warsaw

Mokotowska 49, 00-542 Warsaw

Kingsfordweg 1511043 GR
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Officers and professional advisers : T

m linkedin.com/company/nash-squared/

Officers and professional advisers

Officers - C . | Professional advisers

Directors o Solicitors o

Bev White: . Gary Browning Addleshaw Goddard LLP

Christopher Tilley - Michael Haxby : ' 60 Chiswell Street .

David Morrison Diederik Vos: . London

Michael Bronigcn‘ Streisan Bevan EC1Y 4AG

Adrian Gunn . Joanna Macleod "1 United Kingdom

Secretary. , B

Christopher Tilley !ndependeni auditor
Deloiite LLP

. Registered office : Statutory Auditor

Nash Squared Holdings Limited 2New Street Square o

London EC4A 3BZ - o .

3 Noble Street
London EC2V 7EE .
‘ Principal bankers
Registered number ) : National Westminster Bank plc
11464274 (England and Wales) . 280 Bishopsgate

' ‘ London EC2M 4RB

Contact details : _ . :
+44 {0) 20 7333 0033 . . ’ 4
if\fo@ncshsqt)ored.com ' '
www.nashsquared.com

Social media

Uitimate parent ‘
The Power of Talent Topco Limited

Company number: 132333C
Registered in the Isle of Man
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